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VISION
Leading a healthy, growing and 
profitable BC chicken industry.

PURPOSE
To regulate the pricing and production of BC chicken while 

meeting consumer expectations including animal care and on 
farm food safety; and working with industry partners to maintain 

sustainability as we grow the market.  

Goals

Fair 
we take a balanced 
approach in executing 
our responsibilities 

Implement 
programs that provide 

the opportunity for a fair 
return to the producers, and 

allow processors to be 
competitive in the 
domestic market

Implement 
programs to promote 
increased production 
and consumption of 

chicken in BC.

Implement 
programs that result 

in industry sustainability 
and diversity.

Achieve “Best in 
Class” Board 

governance and 
business operations.

Working within 
the Federal Provincial 

Agreement for chicken to 
optimize growth 

opportunities for the BC 
chicken industry.

With our industry partners, sta� and the public in mind, we are:

Dependable
we can be counted on 
to do what we say we 
will do

Accountable
we hold ourselves 
responsible for our 
decisions and actions 

Values
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REPORT OF THE CHAIR
2019 has been an eventful year for the Board; a new 
chair, appeal decisions, strategic planning and pricing 
top the list.  My first year as Chair has enabled me to 
gain further appreciation of and insight not only into 
the chicken industry in British Columbia but in the 
rest of Canada as well.  I value the input received from 
growers, processors and others in the industry during 
our regional meetings and regular meetings with the 
growers association and processor association.

The chicken industry in British Columbia is supported 
by countless dedicated and committed individuals 
and companies throughout the value chain; from 
hatching egg producers to hatcheries to broiler growers 
to processors and further processors along with the 
allied trades who together are integral to supporting 
the industry and the significant, in excess of $1 billion 
contribution made to the provincial economy.

The ability of the Board to effectively contribute to and 
support growth and sustainability of the chicken industry 
in British Columbia requires the commitment of all 
stakeholders to work collaboratively and collectively 
in realizing the opportunities and addressing the 
challenges.  To this end, the Board joined forces with the 
British Columbia Broiler Hatching Egg Commission to 
lead the development of a strategic framework for the 
British Columbia chicken industry to identify potential 
key issues and priorities for the entire chicken value chain.  

It is the hope of the Board and the Commission that all 
industry stakeholders see value in the framework and 
come together to work collaboratively and effectively 
on priorities that support a strong and successful 
chicken industry in British Columbia.  The Board and 
Commission will be engaging all stakeholders on the 
framework early in 2020.

The Board was pleased with the outcome and 
direction provided in the BC FIRB appeal decision on 
pricing.  Pricing is a complex issue that must take into 
consideration a broad range of factors while at the same 
time balancing the interests of not only the growers 

and processors, but also hatching egg producers and 
hatcheries through the Pricing Linkage Agreement.  

The existing Ontario pricing formula has had a profound 
impact and effect on growers in British Columbia and 
by extension through the Pricing Linkage Agreement 
on hatching egg producers. Over the past six years, 
the Ontario pricing formula has removed close to 12 
cents per kilogram from the live price of chicken in 
Canada. The Board’s pricing formula supported in the 
BC FIRB appeal decision has served to mitigate some 
of the erosion in price caused by the Ontario live price 
adjustments. 

Work is underway through a board sponsored Pricing 
Working Group to provide a forum whereby grower and 
processor representatives are able to objectively and 
collectively research, examine and analyze the policy 
objectives of a live price formula for British Columbia 
chicken.  It is critical for the Board to have solid data 
and metrics by which to assess the performance of 
the industry in British Columbia.  The Working Group 
with the assistance of a facilitator have been meeting 
and working to develop and recommend a long-term 
agreement for pricing of live mainstream chicken in 
British Columbia to the Pricing and Production Advisory 
Committee in early 2020.

In closing, I would like to extend my thanks to my fellow 
members of the Board: Alistair Johnston, Vice-Chair, 
Gay Hahn, Derek Janzen and Ray Nickel for their work 
in support of the chicken industry in British Columbia.  
The work of the Board would not be possible without 
the extensive knowledge and insight provided by 
our Executive Director, Bill Vanderspek and Executive 
Assistant, Christine Rickson, along with the commitment 
of all of the staff of the Chicken Marketing Board.

Harvey Sasaki
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During the calendar year of 2019, British Columbia’s 308 
chicken farmers produced 255 million kilograms (live 
weight) of chicken (an increase from last year of 0.71%).  
In 2019, BC produced 100.6% of its periodic allocation.  

Commencing with the first day of quota period A-155 
(February 17, 2019) the Board increased the levy on all 
classes of the regulated product.  The increase, the first 
in five years, is due to an increase in the levy charged by 
Chicken Farmers of Canada and also due to increased 
operational costs in BC.  A chart comparing provincial 
levies can be found later in the annual report.  

SPECIALTY QUOTA 
CHICKEN EXPANSION:
After the mainstream quota 20% increase was 
announced in 2018 effective for quota period A-164 on 
January 7, 2019 the Board approved a quota expansion 
for holders of specialty chicken quota. 

The expansion will take place in two phases:

1. Effective with period A-157 ( marketing’s from 
June 9 to August 3, 2019) qualifying specialty quota 
holders that entered the industry through the 
BCCMB new entrant program will be eligible to have 
their base quotas increased from their present level 
of 11,189 kilograms to 20,000 kilograms based on 
the standard eight week cycle (an increase of 8,811 
kilograms).  

	z New entrants that have purchased quota beyond 
the 11,189 level will remain eligible to receive an 
increase of 8,811 kilograms.

	z New entrants that have sold or transferred any of 
their specialty quota will not qualify for an increase 
to their quota during this phase of the expansion.

	z Growers that have sufficient registered space for 
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some or all of the increase will be eligible to receive 
an increase to their quota beginning in period A-157. 

	z Growers that do not have sufficient registered space 
for some or all of the increase will be given one 
year from the date of the offer to provide space.  At 
the expiration date of one year, the opportunity for 
additional quota under this offer will be forfeited.

	z All growers will be given the option to accept or 
refuse the offer of an increase to their quotas.

	z Increases to quotas will be subject to a 10/10/0 
declining quota assessment as per Part 35 Quota 
Transfer Assessment of the August 26, 2011 BCCMB 
General Orders. 

2. Effective with period A-159 ( marketing’s from 
September 29 – November 23, 2019) ALL qualifying 
specialty quota  holders with the exception of those 
that have sold or transferred quota in the 365 days 
prior to the date of the offer will be eligible for a 20% 
increase to their base quotas.

	z Growers that have sufficient registered space for 
some or all of the increase will be eligible to receive 
an increase to their quota beginning in period A-159. 

	z Growers that do not have sufficient registered space 
for some or all of the increase will be given one 
year from the date of the offer to provide space. At 
the expiration date of one year, the opportunity for 
additional quota under this phase of the offer will 
be forfeited.

	z All growers will be given the option to accept or 
refuse the offer of an increase to their base quotas.

	z Offers of increases to quotas cannot be deferred to 
a later date.

	z Increases to quotas will be subject to a 10/10/0 
declining quota assessment as per Part 35 Quota 
Transfer Assessment of the August 26, 2011 BCCMB 
General Orders.
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PUBLIC 
ACCOUNTABILITY 
REPORTING PROJECT 
(PARP):
Good governance (including transparency and 
accountability) and informed, strategic decision making 
are essential elements for commodity Boards and FIRB, 
to deliver sound marketing policy outcomes that matter 
for agriculture and the public.  FIRB has requested all 
commodity boards participate in a Public Accountability 
and Report Project (PARP), to demonstrate effective 
governance and sound leadership of the regulated 
agriculture sectors.  This report is to be annual in nature 
and is intended to provide a coordinated approach to 
improve the consistency, effectiveness and transparency 
of information and collection and public reporting. 

Annual PARP reports will help support Boards and FIRB in:

	z Publically demonstrating accountability for good 
governance and strategic decision making through 
defined performance measures;

	z Having consistent baseline data for Board and FIRB 
decision making (sound marketing policy in the 
public interest); and,

	z Identifying what is working well (governance and 
decision-making) and areas for improvement.  

	z The BCCMB PAR for 2019 can be found on the 
BCCMB website or by following this link (http://
bcchicken.ca/wp-content/uploads/2019/07/2018-
PARP-FINAL.pdf)

AMENDMENTS TO THE 
GENERAL ORDERS
During the year 2019, several amendments were circulated 
to the industry via email.  These amendments include:

	z An Amendment to Part 24 – Quota Allotment to 
Growers.  FIRB had ordered amendments to the 
BCCMB General Orders respecting permanent 
increases in quota.  The Board has complied with 

the addition of sections a, b, c to Section 24.5.  
Changes include the option to refuse or accept a 
quota increase, to not permit deferment or receipt 
of a quota increase, and ineligibility requirements 
to be clearly spelled out in the orders.  

	z Schedule 4 – Levies.  The Board increased the 
grower levy (for all classes of quota including 
Market Development) effective with the start of 
A-155 (February 17, 2019) from 1.9 cents to 2.0 cents 
per kilogram live weight.  

Catching Load-Out Process 
Regulation

It has been two years since the incident that precipitated 
action by the industry for more effective regulation of 
the catching and loading process.

A number of initiatives including licensing of catching 
crews, documentation of load out procedures and 
mandatory attendance by growers during load out 
were developed by a wide ranging group of industry 
participants.  The committee included BCCGA directors, 
BCCMB directors, processors, hatcheries, live haul 
operators and catching contractors.

There has been industry wide acceptance of these 
measures  and  the  reasons  for  them.  The  cooperation
from  growers,  catchers  and  live  haul  operators  has  in 
general been very good.  

The load out reports are reviewed daily by BCCMB staff.  
Follow up occurs when a report indicates that there has 
been a problem on a farm that requires attention or an 
explanation from the grower or catching contractor.  
It has been noted that a number of forms are missing 
signatures that are required under Part 10 Delivery to a 
Processor of the BCCMB General Orders as follows:

10.1 At the time of catching/load out of chicken, 
the grower or his/her representative must be present to 
observe at the beginning, at the end and at least once 
during the catching process.
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10.2 During the catching and load out process 
the prescribed form must be completed jointly by the 
grower or grower’s representative and the individual 
in charge of the catching crew. The completed form 
must be submitted to the BCCMB, the grower and 
the processor by the catching crew within 3 days of 
shipment.

On June 4, 2019 a communique was sent to all growers 
intended to serve notice that effective with the first 
shipments in period A-157, load out reports that are 
missing the growers’ signature will be flagged by BCCMB 
staff and dealt with under Part 52 Failure to Comply of 
the General Orders as follows:

52.2  Where a grower fails to comply with General 
Orders governing the submission of prescribed forms or 
other required documentation or timely remittance of 
all funds owing to the Board, the production allotment 
to the grower for the next unallocated period following 
that in which the failure to comply occurred will be 
reduced by the Board:

(a) in the case of a second occurrence, by 250 
kilograms of chicken live weight; and 

(b) in the case of a third or any subsequent 
occurrence, by 10% reduction equivalent 
to the amount of quota held by a grower on 
the grower’s allotment in each subsequent 
unallocated period until compliance is 
achieved to the satisfaction of the Board.

A first instance of a missing signature on a load out 
report will result in a letter advising that a grower is not 
in compliance with Part 10 Delivery to a Processor and 
the action to be taken under Part 52 Failure to Comply 
for repeated noncompliance.

APPEALS:
K&M Farms Annualization:
K&M Farms appealed a decision of the Board, denying 
his request for annualization for its mainstream 
production.  The appeal was heard in June 2018, and 
a decision was rendered by FIRB on May 17, 2019.  FIRB 
ruled in favour of the grower, who will be permitted 
annualization of allotment.

BC Supreme Court Petition:
Andre Patton, dba Cedar Creek Farms has filed a petition to 
the Supreme Court of British Columbia dated July 2, 2019. 

Mr. Patton had filed an appeal to BCFIRB of a January 
24, 2019 decision of the BCCMB to deny his December 
11, 2018 request for removal of the restrictions on his 
Vancouver Island New Entrant quota.  The BCCMB 
applied for a summary dismissal of this appeal which 
was granted by BCFIRB on May 10, 2019.

In his petition to the BC Supreme Court, Mr. Patton is 
applying for:

(a) An order quashing the decision of BCFIRB 
dated May 10, 2019 which decision granted the 
application of the BCCMB to summarily dismiss the 
appeal of Cedar Creek Farms Ltd dated December 
11, 2018 of 
a decision by the BCCMB dated January 24, 2019.

(b) An order remitting the matter back to the BC Farm 
Industry Review Board.

(c) That each party bear their own costs.

(d) Such other and further relief as this Court may 
seem just.

The hearing occurred on October 16-17 in Nanaimo’s 
Supreme Court.  As of the date of this report, a decision 
has not been rendered by the Court.

PPABC Pricing Appeal (A-151 – A-156)
The Primary Poultry Processors Association of BC 
(Hallmark, Sunrise, Sofina and Farm Fed) had appealed 
the BCCMB’s method of calculating the live price 
for periods A-151 through A-156 inclusive.  They are 
requesting a stay of the implementation of the decision 
to the extent necessary to allow the Processors to 
pay the difference in chicken prices between the 2018 
formula and the 2017 pricing formula (excluding the 
$0.012 modular loading levy) into trust pending the 
FIRB’s final decision on this appeal.  This holdback is 
calculated at $0.024 per kilogram for period A-151.

The appeal was heard at the same time as the BCCGA 
pricing appeal; on October 1-5, 2018 and November 1-2, 
2018 inclusive in Vancouver BC. 
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FIRB ruled in favour of the BCCMB on May 16, 2019.  The Board has been directed to issue a decision regarding a long 
term pricing formula no later than quota period A-161.
 
Below is a summary of that decision provided to us by BCFIRB for your information:

	z Did the Chicken Board err in its June 27, 2018 
decision to implement a new pricing formula for the 
live pricing of mainstream broiler chicken effective 
for periods A-151 to A-156?

Decision
	z Both appeals were dismissed.

	z The BC Chicken Marketing Board (Chicken Board) 
was directed to issue its decision regarding a long 
term pricing formula not later than period A-161 
(February 2020).

Findings
	z The Chicken Board’s decision to adjust the 

preliminary pricing decision from a 100% feed and 
chick differential to 75% is consistent with sound 
marketing policy.

	z The Chicken Board followed a procedurally fair 
process based on regulatory requirements, which is 
appropriate to the interim nature of the decision it 
was making for a pricing formula for periods A- 151 
through A-156 (June 2018 to May 2019).

	z The development of the June 27, 2018 pricing 
formula was based on a procedurally sound process 
and should remain in place until such time as the 
Chicken Board establishes a new pricing formula.

	z While the panel supports, in principle, a chicken 
pricing formula based on the Ontario price and a 
fixed differential, there is insufficient evidence before 
the panel on this appeal to establish such a formula. 

BRITISH COLUMBIA FARM INDUSTRY REVIEW BOARD (BCFIRB)
Decision Summary May 16, 2019

Primary Poultry Processors Association of British Columbia and BC Chicken 
Growers’ Association v BC Chicken Marketing Board1

	z The Chicken Board’s finding that the BC grower 
returns were sufficiently low so as to require an 
adjustment in the Pricing Decision was based on 
verifiable data and as such, was reasonable.

	z The panel does not accept that the Processors 
demonstrated, through verifiable data from 
independent sources, declining competitiveness.

	z The interim pricing formula for periods A-151 
through A-156 (July 2018 to May 2019) is consistent 
with sound marketing policy.

Points
	z Compared to other provinces, it generally costs 

more to grow chicken in BC due to higher feed and 
chick costs. There are normal business tensions 
between chicken growers (maximize price received) 
and processors (minimize price paid).

	z It was common ground that the live price formula 
must be consistent, predictable and transparent.

	z BCFIRB observed that open and ongoing 
communication between the Chicken Board, 
the Primary Poultry Processors and the Chicken 
Growers is essential for the success of BC’s chicken 
industry.

1 BCFIRB appeal decisions are available online.
Contact: BC Farm Industry Review Board 250-356-8945 
or firb@gov.bc.ca
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BCCGA Pricing Appeal (A-151 – A-156)
The BC Chicken Growers Association have appealed 
the BCCMB’s method of calculating the live price for 
periods A-151 through A-156 inclusive on the basis 
that does not include the $0.012 per kilogram modular 
loading recovery as was the case during the period of 
the mediated agreement (A-145 through A-150) and 
only accounts for 75% of the difference in feed costs 
between BC and Ontario.

The relief sought should the BCCGA prevail at appeal:

1.  That the feed cost differential in the formula be 
amended from 75% to 100% or otherwise return to 
the original interim decision announced by the Board 
on June 11, 2018.

2. That the modular loading cost recovery premium 
of $0.012 per kilogram be included in the pricing 
formula.  This request for relief was subsequently 
dropped by the BCCGA.

The appeal was heard in conjunction as the PPPABC 
pricing appeal.  

FIRB ruled in favour of the BCCMB on May 16, 2019.  
The Board has been directed to issue a decision 
regarding a long term pricing formula no later than 
quota period A-161.

LONG TERM PRICING 
FORMULA 
The FIRB decision of May 16, 2019 confirmed the 
Board’s current interim pricing decision was to remain 
in place, extending the June 27th 2018 pricing formula 
to the end of quota period A-160, to allow the Chicken 
Board to continue to work on a long term formula.  
To this end, the Board proposed an approach and 
process whereby the primary stakeholders can work 
collaboratively together to recommend a long-term 
pricing agreement for mainstream chicken on live 
price that will provide stability and predictability for 
the chicken industry in BC.  

The Board has established a Pricing Working Group 

(PWG), composed of 2 growers, 2 primary processors, 
the PPAC Chair and a professional facilitator.  The 
purpose of the PWG is to provide a forum whereby the 
growers and processors are able to objectively and 
collectively research, examine and analyze the policy 
objectives of a live price formula for BC chicken and 
meet and work to develop and attempt to recommend 
a long term pricing agreement for the pricing of live 
mainstream chicken (regular broilers) in the province of 
British Columbia to the Pricing and Production Advisory 
Committee (PPAC).  The goal of the PWG committee 
is to foster collaboration, and remove obstacles to 
determining an agreed upon long term pricing strategy 
for mainstream chicken.  

As per the June 9, 2010 Supervisory Decision of 
BCFIRB “the workable pricing model must be consist, 
predictable transparent, and result in a live price 
that gives growers a reasonable return, and allows 
processors to be competitive in the Canadian market.  
The model must allow industry stakeholders to 
concentrate on market issues rather than arguing over 
price every eight weeks.”

The PWG is a separate and distinct from the BCCMB’s 
PPAC.  The findings and recommendations of the PWG 
will be presented to the PPAC.  The PWG committee 
has 5 months to meet and make recommendations 
with respect to a long term pricing agreement.  The 
recommendations will then undergo full consultation, 
with the target for implementation to commence for 
quota period A-161 (starts January 19, 2020).

The PWG met a number of times in 2019, and will 
continue their work into the New Year.

LINKAGE UPDATE
The BCCMB and BCBHEC completed the engagement 
of a scheduled update to the pricing linkage between 
the two commodities in 2019.  For period A-156 
(which began on April 14, 2019) the BCCMB agreed 
to implement the update to the pricing linkage in 
accordance with the BCCMB/BCBHEC memorandum of 
understanding signed in 2016. 

The MOU did not contemplate or include any changes 
to the hatchery margin or the inclusion of incentives 
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provided to chicken growers in excess of the posted 
live price which the BCBHEC now want included in the 
current linkage formula.  Both the BCCGA and PPPABC 
have indicated opposition for inclusion of the 3 cent 
“loyalty bonus” into the linkage as requested by the 
BCBHEC.  The BCBHEC on August 9/19 provided notice 
to remove the revenue from spent hens and salvage 
eggs from the hatching egg cost of production (COP) 
in order to address the inequity arising from the refusal 
to include chicken grower premiums in the linkage 
calculation effective for the start of A-159.  Subsequently 
the BCCGA appealed the decision of the BCBHEC, and 
the BCBHEC reversed its decision as the BCCMB has not 
yet taken a formal position on the issue.  The BCBHEC 
asked the Board to formally communicate its position 
in time to allow for implementation for A-160.  

The parties met on November 5, 2019 to discuss a 
process by which to enable either or both parties to 
consider and approve “adjustments” to the elements 
of the linkage calculations.  Discussions between the 
Board and Commission on this file are ongoing.

UTILIZATION UPDATE
In October of 2019, the Board disbanded the Allocation 
Utilization Optimization Committee (Value Chain 
Committee) as it had fulfilled its mandate to work 
collectively toward achieving a minimum of 100% of BC’s 
periodic allocation from Chicken Farmers of Canada.  

In October of 2017, the BCCMB announced the 
following temporary measure in addition to a suite 
of measures that were announced earlier that were 
designed to promote 100% utilization of BC’s share of 
the national allocation:

Quote from the October 2017 BCCMB Update:

For an initial two year period beginning in Period A-149, 
ending in A-161: 

	z The board will consider a temporary lease of 
unregistered barn space by a registered grower. 

	z To qualify a grower must meet the requirements 
in Part 33 Barn Space at section 33.1 - have room 
for his entire allotment at a minimum of 31 kg/

square meter on his own premise. This includes any 
additional quota acquired or granted to a grower 
during the period the lease is in existence. 

	z A written lease must be on file at the Board office. 
The lease must be for a building, not a floor or a 
portion of a floor. The lease must specify the quota 
periods it covers and must terminate no later than 
the end of period A-161. 

	z The leased space must be approved in advance 
by BCCMB field services staff prior to use. Once 
approved, the leased space may be utilized in the 
next unallocated period. 

	z Please contact BCCMB field services staff if you have 
questions or a facility that you are considering to 
lease or lease out.

As indicated in the quote from 2017, this was 
scheduled to end in A-161.  Following discussions 
with industry stakeholders, the BCCMB has approved 
the extension of this program for a further two years, 
to the period A-175.  All conditions specified in the 
quote from October 2017 will continue to apply.

Another temporary measure, after review, was 
rolled back.  Effective with period A-161 (which 
begins with shipments on January 19, 2020) the 
Board ordered that monetary over marketing levies 
will be rolled back to within historic levels as per the 
BCCMB General Orders. 

Part 27 Overmarketing and Overplacement of the 
BCCMB General Orders states in Section 27.6:
In addition, a grower who produces and markets 
chicken in a quota production period in excess of the 
allotment shall:

(a) pay to the Board overproduction levies at the 
rate of 44 cents per kilogram of chicken produced 
and marketed by the grower that is in excess of 
106% but not in excess of 110% of the production 
allotted; and 

(a) pay to the Board levies at the rate of 66 cents per 
kilogram of chicken produced and marketed by the 
grower that is in excess of 110% of the production 
allotted.

The BCCMB had committed to making no changes to 
the overmarketing policy without providing notice 
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prior to the first egg sets for a new period.  The 
notice of November 5, 2019 to industry met that 
requirement as the first eggs for period A-161 will 
not be set until approximately November 24, 2019.
  
The balance of initiatives that were intended to reach 
100% of BC’s share of the national allocation will remain 
in effect at this time, but may be subject to further 
amendment by the Board if the current provincial 
overproduction situation is not resolved.

Remaining in effect until further notice are the following 
temporary measures that were first announced in 2017:

	z No cutback 6 periods in the future for production 
that does not exceed 102% of allotment.

	z Leasing IN up to the equivalent of 100% of allotment.

	z Leasing of unregistered space has been extended to 
period A-175.

The Chicken Board will work jointly with the Hatching 
Egg Commission to jointly sponsor a session to establish 
a better working model for the value chain committee, 
and to develop new objectives and a new terms of 
reference with full industry stakeholder participation.

Potential National OM levy
The Board expects to receive a national over marketing 
levy from CFC for quota periods A-158 and A-159.  The final 
production numbers have not been audited; however, 
the penalty is estimated to be approximately $179,506.  
As the BCCMB does not budget for over marketing levies, 
the funds will come from general revenue.  

Animal Activism
Animal activism against supply managed commodities 
has been on the rise this year.  Farms are being targeted, 
subjected to undercover investigations and trespassing.  
Out of an abundance of caution and due diligence, 
all farms are encouraged to take steps to secure their 
properties and implement any improvements to existing 
security plans along with increased diligence in screening 
any potential employees.

Continuation of transition to digital 
communications
Growers received notice in May of 2017 that the Annual 
report would no longer be provided in hard copy and 
sent by mail and that instead a link would be provided 
to access it directly from the BCCMB website.  

Earlier this year the option of e-transfers was made 
available for payments to the Board, for example 2019 
licence applications, over-marketing levies and quota 
transfer fees.  As part of the Board’s continuing initiative 
to eliminate paper and move fully towards digital 
communications with growers and industry partners, 
we announced that effective January 1, 2019 the BCCMB 
office would no longer be sending any communications 
via Canada Post to growers. ALL growers are be 
required to provide the BCCMB office with an email 
address in order to receive correspondence from 
the BCCMB.  

Also on the above noted date, the Board has ceased 
to accept/send faxes.  Growers are to scan their BC 111 
and MD forms and email them to the BCCMB Office. 
As an alternative to scanning, growers can to use their 
smartphones to take a photo of a document and send 
it to the office via email.

	z Correspondence with the Field Services staff should 
be directed to inspection@bcchicken.ca

	z General correspondence to the BCCMB office should 
be directed to info@bcchicken.ca

Right to left : Derek Janzen, Gay Hahn, Harvey 
Sasaki and Ray Nickel.
Missing: Vice Chair Alistair Johnston.
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Board/Staff Makeup
During 2019 there were changes to the makeup of the 
Board.  Mr. Ray Nickel was re-elected by acclamation 
to his second three year term which will be effective 
February 29, 2019 and expire in March 2022. In internal 
elections held by the Board, Alistair Johnston was named 
to replace Derek Janzen as Vice-Chair of the BCCMB.  

Mr. Harvey Sasaki was appointed as BCCMB Chair 
effective December 21, 2018 by Order-in-Council 
796/18 for a two year term that is set to expire on 
December 21, 2020.  Harvey is President of Agri-Saki 
Consulting Incorporated specializing in agricultural 
policy and risk management.  Harvey has worked 
with a broad range of industry and government 
clients, including ARDCorp, Association of BC Cattle 
Feeders, BC Agriculture Council, BC Chicken Growers 
Association, BC Egg Marketing Board, BC Fruit Growers 
Association, BC Milk Marketing Board, BC Poultry 
Association, Cattle Industry Development Council, 
Agriculture and Agri-Foods Canada, City of Abbotsford, 
and the University of the Fraser Valley.  Harvey worked 
for 31 years, in varying capacities in the BC Ministry 
of Agriculture, closing out his public service career in 
November 2010 as an Assistant Deputy Minister.  

Several changes were made to staff in 2019.  On March 
1st of 2019 the Manager of Field Services Ms. Kathy 
Erickson retired after 17 years of service.  We wish Kathy 
and Dennis the best as they retire to the Okanagan. 
Shawn Mallon, BCCMB Manager of Administration, 
added the role of Program Delivery Agent to his 
responsibilities and will also oversee the field services 
staff.  On July 8th the BCCMB welcomed Ms. Priscilla 
Miller to the vacant field services position.  Priscilla 
comes to us from the Chicken Farmers of Nova Scotia, 
where she worked in the field services and production 
departments. She has 5 years of experience with 
Chicken Farmers of Nova Scotia and is fully trained 
and certified to audit CFC’s Animal Care and On Farm 
Food Safety Programs.  On September 6, 2019, BCCMB 
Production Coordinator Ms. Arlene Oslie retired after 
8 years of service with the BCCMB. She will be missed 
and we wish her well in her retirement.  Ms. Karlie 
Erickson moved from her position in field services to 
the position of Production Coordinator on September 
9, 2019 with the retirement of Arlene.   Finally, you may 
have noticed a new face at the reception counter or 

on the phone.  On March 4th Ms. Debora Ferreira was 
hired as our new administrative assistant.  Deb comes 
to us with a number of years in the banking industry.  

The Board’s organization structure updated chart can 
be found within this report.  

Many thanks to BCCMB staff members Christine 
Rickson, Kira Harrison, Jason Maarhuis, Cheryl Davie, 
Shawn Mallon, Karlie Erickson, Guzel Gafurova, 
Debora Ferreira, Priscilla Miller and Zoe Vassalos for 
their continued hard work and dedication. 

From left to right: Deb Ferreira, Christine Rickson, 
Zoe Vassalos, Shawn Mallon, Kira Harrison, 
Karlie Erickson, Jason Maarhuis, Guzel Gafurova, 
Priscilla Miller. 
Front row: Arlene Oslie.
Missing: Cheryl Davie and Bill Vanderspek.

Bill Vanderspek
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REPORT FROM 
THE MANAGER OF 
ADMINISTRATION
In 2019 the position of Manager of Field Services was 
incorporated into the Manager of Administration 
position. The BCCMB auditing team of Jason, Kira and 
Priscilla conducted the On-Farm Food Safety Program 
(OFFSP), Animal Care Program (ACP) and BC Biosecurity 
Program audits on 334 registered broiler premises in 
BC. All broiler premises completed or were scheduled 
to complete their annual audit by the end of 2019.

The 4 most common corrective actions on farm for 
OFFSP, ACP, and Biosecurity programs in 2019 were:
  
1. 109 corrective actions for ammonia testing  

and recording

2. 105 corrective actions for incomplete Standard 
Operating Procedures

3. 97 corrective actions for annual water test

4. 34 corrective actions for density calculations and 
high density monitoring requirements

Chicken Farmers of Canada (CFC) updated the ACP, 
making the highly recommended practices from 2018 
mandatory in 2019. Growers had to adjust management 
practices to incorporate these changes. Corrective 
actions for density calculations and high density 
monitoring decreased from seventy in 2018 to thirty-four 
in 2019. Corrective actions issued for rodent control also 
decreased from sixty-five in 2018 to nineteen in 2019. 
The BCCMB issued three warning letters to growers with 
overdue corrective actions. The growers that received 
those letters completed their corrective actions on or 
before the deadline stated in their warning letter.  
     
The BCCMB received a total of seven complaints 
pertaining to broiler premises. Of the seven complaints 
five were related to odor/compost, one was related to 

foot pad lesions and one was related to chick placement. 
All seven complaints were followed up by one of BCCMB’s 
Field Service Representatives. Five complaints were 
concluded to be normal farm practices, two complaints 
had trigger audits conducted but no corrective actions 
were issued.

CFC Internal and Third Party Audits
CFC’s commitment to the OFFSP and ACP program 
instituted a third party audit of all provinces starting 
in 2016. These audits were performed in 2019 by NSF 
International on BCCMB Field Service Representatives. 
The reports received from NSF confirmed BCCMB 
Field Service Representatives have a comprehensive 
understanding of the OFFSP and ACP programs. In 
addition CFC conducted its own full audit on BCCMB 
procedures for administering their OFFSP and ACP 
programs. CFC issued four corrective actions to the 
Manager of Administration. Corrective actions were 
completed before CFC deadline of January 6, 2020. The 
reports of both NSF third party audits and CFC internal 
audit were summarized by CFC and made available to 
everyone involved in Canada’s chicken supply chain.

BC Biosecurity Program
BC’s Biosecurity Committee, which includes representation 
from the four poultry Boards, completed their update of 
BC’s Biosecurity Program. Implementation of the new 
Biosecurity Program begins January 1, 2020. BC’s new 
Biosecurity Manual is posted on the BCCMB website. 

Salmonella Enteritidis (SE)  
BC’s Salmonella Enteritidis (SE) prevalence study 
continued for its third year in 2019. A report was prepared 
by staff for the BCCMB and CFC detailing the prevalence 
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growers were very important as BCCMB staff review 
and follow-up on these comments/observations. The 
BCCMB appreciates industries continued support.

Total Flock Mortality and First Week 
Mortality for 2019 
This includes all bird types (Specialty, Organic, 
Mainstream and Raised Without Antibiotics). These 
graphs represent mortality levels over an entire year. 
Please note that we have used the difference between 
the number of birds placed and the payable birds 
shipped for the “Total Flock Mortality Average” graph. 
Condemns that are not deducted from the growers 
and DOA’s will be included. The numbers from the “First 
Week Mortality Average” graph come from the BC111 
Form that each grower sends in after placement.

of SE on broiler premises in BC. Testing for SE at the farm 
level will continue in 2020. SE tests will be taken during 
the annual audits on farms with age appropriate birds. 
BCCMB staff would like to thank growers for their on-
going support of this Board initiative. 

Live Haul and Load-Out Reports
BCCMB Field Service Representatives continued to 
attend live haul and review load-out reports. In 2019 
the BCCMB sent out thirty warning letters to growers 
for incomplete load-out reports, no penalties were 
issued. Growers are reminded that catching crews are 
responsible to provide the load-out report at time of 
catching. Growers are responsible to sign and observe 
the catching process at the beginning, middle and end. 
Please note that comments/observations documented 
on the load-out reports by both catching crews and 
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RWA Total Flock Mortality & RWA 
First Week Mortality for 2019 

This includes only birds raised without antibiotics. 
These graphs represent mortality levels over an entire 
year. Please note that we have used the difference 
between the number of birds placed and the payable 

birds shipped for the “Total Flock Mortality Average 
(RWA)” graph. Condemns that are not deducted from 
the growers and DOA’s will be included. The numbers 
from the “First Week Mortality Average (RWA)” graph 
comes from the BC111 Form that each grower sends 
in after each placement.

Shawn Mallon
Manager of Administration 
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Supply Management BC 
In March 2019 we collaborated with the other supply 
managed industries in BC and hosted a lunch for MLS 
in Victoria where BCCMB Vice Chair Derek Janzen 
provided a presentation about the economic impact of 
the supply managed sectors in BC.

REPORT FROM THE 
MANAGER OF STRATEGIC 
INITIATIVES

Buy BC 
The BC Chicken Marketing Board participated in the 
BUY BC partnership program in 2019.  This promotion 
included a specialty Asian chicken advertising 
campaign, the creation of marketing and promotional 
materials, television advertising, online digital 
advertising and a social media contest promotion.  

Strategic Partnerships 
7-11 
The latest Chicken Squad TM Investigates video starring 
chicken farmers Mike Braun and James Penner was 
promoted heavily by 7-11 Canada on TSN during the NHL 
and NBA season.  With Canadian viewership reaching 
record levels during the Toronto Raptors run to the 
playoffs, this ad received coverage and exposure that we 
could have never achieved if we had worked alone.
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Take a Bite of BC 
From November 27-30, 2019 chicken was the spot light 
produce in BC Agriculture in the Classroom’s Take a Bite 
of BC program.  In addition to delivering fresh whole 
chicken to 55 secondary school culinary arts programs, 
we made presentation about chicken farming to seven 
classes of students at three different secondary schools 
in Vancouver.  Special thanks to Bev Whitta for coming 

Canuck Place Children’s Hospice
In 2019, BCCMB provided Canuck Place Children’s Hospice 
with 1,068 kilograms of BC chicken to be used to provide 
home-cooked nutritious meals to BC families.  The entire 
Canuck Place organization has been thrilled with this 
support and families are raving about the meals.  Canuck 
Place provides pediatric palliative care to BC families at 
resident facilities in Abbotsford and Vancouver. 

Overwaitea Food Group
On March 9, 2019 BC chicken farmers helped promote 
local chicken at seven Save On Foods locations in BC.   
Farmers not only answered questions about chicken 
farming and dispelled myths but they also helped 
increase chicken sales for that day.  Thank you to Mark 
and Timothy Bartel, John and Margaret Bartel, Dave 
and Sheryl Martens, Shaili and Amanda Renner, Alf 
Wall, Bev Whitta and Erv Wiens for participating in this 
important event. 

from Vancouver Island to help with these presentations.  
For most of these students, it was the first time they 
have ever met a farmer.   
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DIFFERENTIAL 
GROWTH ALLOCATION 
AGREEMENT 
In November 20, 2014 Chicken Farmers of Canada 
announced the signing of a new allocation agreement 
that would allocate 55% of future growth based on 
provincial comparative advantage factors, such as 
population growth, income-based GDP, consumer price 
index, farm input price index and quota utilization.  For 

BC, the amount of growth that is allocated based on 
comparative advantage factors is less than would have 
been allocated under the former pro-rata agreement.  At 
the end of period 160, ending January 18, 2020, the total 
difference between pro-rata growth and actual growth 
(in kilograms) of allocation is 21,109,940 KG (evis). 

Cheryl Davie
Cheryl Davie
Manager of Strategic Initiatives

Period Start Date End Date  Pro Rata KG  (evis)  Actual  KG (evis) Difference in Growth KG   
A127 8-Nov-14 27-Dec-14  22,191,334  22,023,559  167,775 

A128 28-Dec-14 21-Feb-15  22,414,634  22,238,884  175,750 

A129 22-Feb-15 18-Apr-15  23,446,011  23,260,229  185,782 

A130 19-Apr-15 13-Jun-15  23,848,395  23,640,237  208,158 

A131 14-Jun-15 8-Aug-15  23,430,485  23,244,475  186,010 

A132 9-Aug-15 3-Oct-15  22,821,648  22,635,828  185,820 

A133 4-Oct-15 28-Nov-15  23,681,702  23,356,951  324,751 

A134 29-Nov-15 23-Jan-16  23,085,959  23,006,831  79,128 

A135 24-Jan-16 19-Mar-16  24,015,610  23,803,366  212,244 

A136 20-Mar-16 14-May-16  24,639,378  24,399,703  239,675 

A137 15-May-16 9-Jul-16  24,801,531  24,400,889  400,642 

A138 10-Jul-16 3-Sep-16  24,510,177  23,874,018  636,159 

A139 4-Sep-16 29-Oct-16  23,985,994  23,796,768  189,226 

A140 30-Oct-16 24-Dec-16  24,103,214  23,899,948  203,266 

A141 25-Dec-16 18-Feb-17  24,224,916  23,061,922  1,162,994 

A142 19-Feb-17 15-Apr-17  25,246,736  24,947,572  299,164 

A143 16-Apr-17 10-Jun-17  26,005,528  25,405,445  600,083 

A144 11-Jun-17 5-Aug-17  25,875,461  25,612,455  263,006 

A145 6-Aug-17 30-Sep-17  26,021,381  25,453,862  567,519 

A146 1-Oct-17 25-Nov-17  26,000,118  25,051,239  948,879 

A147 26-Nov-17 20-Jan-18  25,523,188  24,545,253  977,935 

A148 21-Jan-18 17-Mar-18  25,837,575  25,262,112  575,463 

A149 18-Mar-18 12-May-18  26,544,442  26,200,157  344,285 

A150 13-May-18 7-Jul-18  26,876,308  26,102,991  773,317 

A151 8-Jul-18 1-Sep-18  27,704,022  27,222,193  481,829 

A152 2-Sep-18 27-Oct-18  26,826,777  26,144,148  682,629 

A153 28-Oct-18 22-Dec-18  27,183,656  26,328,448  855,208 

A154 23-Dec-18 16-Feb-19  25,824,578  24,240,038  1,584,540 

A155 17-Feb-19 13-Apr-19  26,399,089  26,206,607  192,482 

A156 14-Apr-19 8-Jun-19  27,702,248  26,731,659  970,589 

A157 9-Jun-19 3-Aug-19  27,906,713  27,044,784  861,929 

A158 4-Aug-19 28-Sep-19  27,693,900  26,718,271  975,629 

A159 29-Sep-19 23-Nov-19  27,658,108  26,762,101  896,007 

A160 24-Nov-19 18-Jan-20  26,451,271  25,336,375  1,114,896 

Data Source: Chicken Farmers of Canada
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PPAC REPORT
The Pricing and Production Advisory Committee 
(PPAC) met on one occasion in 2019 and addressed 
the issue of mainstream pricing and how application 
of the current formula is not serving the needs of 
Growers, Processors, Breeders and Hatcheries. It is a 
complicated issue but a solution to pricing has been 
passed to the Pricing Working Group (PWG) established 
by the Board to make recommendations to the PPAC.  
The PWG consists of two Processors, two Growers, a 
Facilitator and the Chair of PPAC.  The PWG is tasked 
with developing a pricing model for presentation and 
review by the PPAC and subsequently recommended 
to the Board. The work of the PWG is to be completed 
early in 2020.  

On behalf of the PPAC we acknowledge the support of 
the Board and Staff and thank them for their assistance 
and input. 

Respectfully submitted

Jim Byrne 

Hatching
Egg Producers

Hatcheries

Regulated
Sectors

• BCFIRB
• COMB   
• COGA

BCCMB
• PPAC
• SMAC

Consumers 
and Public

• CFC
• FPCC
• SM4/5

Chicken
Processors

Chicken
Growers
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SMAC REPORT
The Specialty Market Advisory Committee (SMAC) 
met on three occasions in 2019 to consider pricing 
advisories by Serecon and other related matters.  As a 
result, the SMAC recommended the price for Specialty 
Chicken be adjusted due to feed cost variances while 
chick costs remained unchanged. In all cases the 
recommendations were to adopt the Serecon price 
calculations 100%.  

Prices for Specialty production (base category) 
increased as shown in table below:

The SMAC dealt with many issues in 2019 such as 
the New Entrant Program.   Once the current list 
of applicants is exhausted a new program will be 
developed with input from PPAC, SMAC and other 
affected parties. A Mentorship program was discussed 
to offer new producers help with their business plans. 
The Board has offered to provide names of experienced 
producers willing to assist new entrants. 

The Specialty Chicken sector was also offered 
additional quota to provide top up to 20,000 kg for 
eligible producers. Furthermore, the Specialty sector 
will also benefit from a 20% quota increase for eligible 
producers.

The SMAC met with representatives from CFC to 
explore ways and means of identifying chicken breeds 
that could be considered as Specialty. The industry 
has developed sufficiently and as such there is the 
expectation that other ‘types’ of chicken should be 
included in the category. Specialty producers and SMAC 
will continue to participate in the development of CFC 
policies in this regard. 

On behalf of the members of SMAC we acknowledge the 
support of the Board and Staff and thank them for their 
assistance and input.

Respectfully submitted 

Jim Byrne 
Chair

A-155/156 A-157/158 A-159/160
Loon Kong $2.71/kg $2.71 $2.72

Bradner Special Dual $2.71/kg $2.72 $2.72

Bradner Long Cycle $2.82/kg $2.83 $2.84

Shondon or Hong Kong Golden $2.71/kg $2.74 $2.75

Silkie $4.14/kg $4.14/kg $4.17/kg
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RESEARCH REPORT
Please find below a summary of the research and 
continuing education projects conducted in 2019 
(Continued from 2018). 

Raising broilers without the use of 
antibiotics
	z As more companies move towards raising broilers 

without the use of antibiotics there is a significant 
requirement for more research on how to execute 
these programs successfully. We are developing 
new management techniques and standards 
to successfully raise flocks without the use of 
antibiotics. This research is focused on enhancing 
gut health (antibiotic alternatives, gastrointestinal 
physiology, and management practices) to 
manage diseases such as coccidiosis and  
necrotic enteritis. 

	� There are numerous factors involved, including 
the importance of early feed intake and the 
establishment of a steady state eating pattern. 
Recent research monitoring and studying 
the effect of feed form on performance and 
intestinal disease incidence has been initiated.

	�  Strategic use of coccidiosis vaccines and 
chemical anticoccidials to control coccidiosis in 
an effective and sustainable way. 

	�  Use of selected strains of Bacillus sp. to improve 
environmental and intestinal health 

	�  Use of unique blends of plant extracts and 
enzymes to treat and control necrotic enteritis

	� Utilization of the Platinum Brooding® APP to 
automatically harvest and analyze critical 
management metrics.  

	z Interactions with other pathogenic organisms 
(E.coli, Salmonella sp., Viral pathogens, etc) may 
trigger intestinal disease. Research focused on 
disease prevention strategies that allow for very 
early establishment of normal gut flora has  
been continued.

	�  The development of a coccidiosis-specific set 
of management criteria designed to improve 
the ability for chickens to become immune 
to coccidiosis.  Now an integral part of the 
educational component taught in the Platinum 
Brooding® Program 

	� Litter treatments that involve the inclusion of 
facultative anaerobic spore forming enzyme-
producing bacteria, acidification and coccidiosis 
vaccine treatments of the zone of comfort of the 
seeding area.

	� Water acidification protocols which discourage 
the growth of pathogenic organisms and 
promote the growth and establishment of a 
favorable gut microflora.

	� Protocols for using misters to initiate sporulation 
where dry litter (often top floors) impedes 
sporulation of coccidial oocysts.

	� Understanding and applying interventions to 
reduce the impact of Salmonella enteritidis and 
reduce secondary necrotic enteritis. 

	z Salmonella enteritidis

	� Salmonella, in particular Salmonella enteritidis, 
is an important disease-causing agent affecting 
both poultry and human health. There is 
literature which reports interactions with 
Salmonella enteritidis, coccidiosis and necrotic 
enteritis.  Significant effort has, and continues to 
be made to control the risk posed by Salmonella 
at all levels of the broiler and broiler meat 
processing industries. Research was initiated to 
help prevent the spread of Salmonella with the 
use of water and litter amendments (including 
acidifiers, probiotics and other products). 
Research and development have continued to 
produce effective methods for monitoring this 
pathogen as well as designing intervention 
strategies to reduce the levels of Salmonella that 
ultimately enters the processing plant. 
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	z Coccidiosis Prevention Planner ©

	� The prevention of coccidiosis and necrotic 
enteritis in all commercial broiler farming 
systems requires short, medium and long term 
planning strategies.  These intestinal diseases 
are prevented through an understanding of 
the various interactions between the chicken, 
the environment and the causative agents.  
Disciplined coccidiosis prevention strategies 
are very effective in minimizing the significant 
negative impact associated with coccidiosis and 
necrotic enteritis, not only on performance, but 
also on welfare, health, antibiotic resistance 
and food safety.  Disciplined coccidiosis and 
necrotic enteritis strategies are also extremely 
important for the long term sustainability of 
the various additives currently permitted for 
use in the feed. We are continuing to research 
and develop a new computer-based Coccidiosis 
Prevention Planner©. This planner provides 
easy access to a library of information relative 
to available coccidiostats, antibacterial, and 
other custom ingredients and products. The CPP 
output also produces an annual “cocci wheel” 
allowing the user to efficiently archive and share 
planning and results in an easy to interpret 
multidimensional diagram. In the future, this 
new tool will help with the successful, long-term 
management of coccidiosis. The CPP will be 
evaluated as a tool to guide and record disease 
prevention decisions. 

	�  The Coccidiosis Prevention Planner© is now 
being utilized by Professors for teaching-
purposes. The feedback gleaned will be  
used to fine-tune the software to better fit 
local conditions

	�  The Coccidiosis Prevention Planner© is 
currently being used to record and plan 
feeding programs in British Columbia  
and Alberta.

	�  Due to the increased multi-provincial 
and multinational use of the Coccidiosis 
Prevention Planner©, the medication table 
in the Coccidiosis Prevention Planner© 
has received great interest from multiple 
stakeholders.  Medications in this table 

are maintained by third parties to ensure 
accuracy in the Canadian and USA versions 
of the software.  This stakeholder partnership 
has further increased the utility of the 
Coccidiosis Prevention Planner and we 
expect it to grow throughout the years.

 
ELT and litter enhancement 
procedures
	z  New strategies for litter management are being 

developed and evaluated for their effect on 
environmental pathogen levels, overall flock health 
and performance, Salmonella enteritidis, and 
necrotic enteritis control. This research involves the 
acidification of litter and the addition of various 
facultative anaerobic spore forming, enzyme 
producing bacteria (Enhanced Litter Treatment). 

Environmental Impact and 
Sustainability 
Producing safe, wholesome and reasonably priced 
poultry meat represents the guiding principles at S. J. 
Ritchie Research Farms Ltd. and Little Wing Poultry.  
In 2018 the facilities were equipped with solar energy 
recapture systems and rain water recapture systems.  
Critical data has been gathered for analysis and further 
decisions relative to the objectives surrounding net 
zero broiler meat production.  While there is extensive 
focus on the kilowatts of energy (sun and water) that are 
captured on the barn roof, it is also important to focus 
on bird health and optimum feed utilization efficiency. 
A coccidiosis prevention plan is being developed using 
software designed in BC and the utilization of a more 
natural diet to improve efficiency of feed utilization. The 
feeding of an all-vegetable diet is considered a constraint 
and by adjusting this constraint benefits associated with 
bird health and performance can be realized. 
 
Focus Points:  

	z  Solar Power Re-capture 

	z  Rain Water Re-capture 

	z  Feed conversion and optimal health 
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Platinum Brooding® classes
	z www.platinumbrooding.com  Over fifty classes 

have been conducted in BC since its inception in 
415964 B.C..  There have been a number of  
classes at the University of Arkansas, the  
University of Georgia, throughout North America, 
Asia and Australia.

Platinum Brooding® app and 
dashboard
	z  Significant resources have been spent developing 

the Platinum Brooding® App and Dashboard that 
collects, analyses and reports real-time data to 
improve performance and husbandry.  This uses 
the Platinum Brooding® Checklist© that was 
developed and taught at 415964 B.C. Inc.

BCPS (BC Poultry Symposium)
	z This event is held in May each year, providing an 

opportunity to share advances in research and 
development with all stakeholders.

	z Venue for the sharing of research and development 
projects from SJRRF and LW.  

Western Meeting of Poultry 
Clinicians and Pathologists 
(Westvet)
	z This event is held in May each year, providing an 

opportunity for poultry clinicians and scientists  

to share case studies, discoveries, innovations  
and solutions. 

University of the Fraser Valley 
	z  415964 B.C. used as an outreach and teaching 

facility for instructors and student enrolled at  
the university.

Submitted on behalf of Dr. Stewart Ritchie

EDUCATION, OUTREACH 
AND CONTINUING 
EDUCATION 
OPPORTUNITIES IN BC 
WHERE INNOVATIONS 
AND SOLUTIONS ARE 
SHARED
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PATHOGEN REDUCTION 
INITIATIVES – WHAT YOU 
NEED TO KNOW
One of the roles Chicken Farmers of Canada plays is to 
monitor the pressures on our industry and determine if 
any actions or mitigation steps should be taken to reduce 
risks. Over the last few years, there has been significant 
external pressure mounting regarding pathogen 
reduction in poultry and Chicken Farmers of Canada has 
been actively engaged with the government on this.

Pathogen reduction has become a major government 
priority – and it’s here to stay.
 

Multiple levels of government have been engaging the 
entire poultry supply chain for several years to discuss 
pathogen reduction, and in the past year these meetings 
have evolved into more operational discussions about 
on-farm surveillance and mitigation strategies. 

CFIA took steps in 2018 to mandate maximum 
Salmonella levels in frozen raw breaded chicken 
products, but it has been clear through discussions that 
they are concerned about Salmonella in all types of raw 
poultry. The industry-government pathogen reduction 
working group is now examining surveillance options 
and management protocols to reduce SE along the 
supply chain. The goal will be centered around a public 
health target for number of illnesses, rather than setting 
prevalence limits for each sector. 

Chicken Farmers of Canada will continue to 
communicate this message, and also to implement 
the Raised by a Canadian Farmer On-Farm Food Safety 
Program (OFFSP) which has been in place since 1998 
with great success. When engaging with the government 

on issues like pathogen reduction, being able to speak 
about the success and credibility of OFFSP goes a long 
way in demonstrating the commitment of all farmers to 
producing safe food for Canadians.

Chicken Farmers of Canada is set to begin a national 
Salmonella prevalence survey in the 2020. The main 
objective is to determine the on-going monitoring and 
mitigation needs that are appropriate for Canadian 
chicken farms in the future. Much of 2019 was spent 
working with supply chain members (broiler breeders, 
hatcheries, and processors) to determine the best way 
forward for the chicken industry to address this. Each 
sector is taking additional steps to address pathogen 
reduction, and for chicken farms, a decision was made 
in August by the Board of Directors to begin a national 
Salmonella prevalence survey.

The survey will be done on approximately 10% of 
farms across the country (based on a standardized 
sample size calculation), with samples being taken in 
every province throughout the entire year to account 
for seasonality. Each provincial board will determine 
the personnel who will be taking the samples and will 
also be responsible for ensuring confidentiality of data; 
farms will only be identified by confidential identifiers 
and only aggregate results will be reported. 

For this initial survey, the timing of results will not coincide 
with the marketing of the surveyed flock. As a result, there 
will be no required actions for the surveyed flock, but a 
report will be provided to the farmer which will include 
recommendations in the case of a positive result. 

CHICKEN FARMERS
OF CANADA REPORT TO 
THE PROVINCES
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TRADE UPDATE

Canada-Mercosur Free Trade 
Negotiations
Canada’s negotiations with the Mercosur trading block 
of Brazil, Argentina, Uruguay, and Paraguay were put on 
hold until after the Canadian federal elections.
 

During Round 7, which took place in Ottawa between 
July  29  and  August  2,  negotiators  were  successful 
in  reaching  an  agreement  on  modalities,  which  set 
the desired level of ambition.  

Chicken Farmers of Canada will continue to closely 
monitor these negotiations as Mercosur includes both 
Brazil – the largest chicken exporter in the world – 
which controls 33% of the global chicken market, and 
Argentina, which aims to increase its broiler meat exports 
11% from 187 million kilograms in 2018 to 210 million 
kilograms in 2019. Currently, Brazil is Canada’s second 
largest source of chicken imports after the United States, 
with 11.1 million kilograms of imports in 2018.

Canada-United States-Mexico 
Agreement (CUSMA)
Although the Canadian government introduced Bill 
C-100, the bill to implement CUSMA, in the summer 
of 2019, the dropping of the writ on September 11 
suspended Parliament, and there was no further 
movement until the Christmas break. While Mexico 
had completed their ratification process late in 2019, 
the United States, which had been debating it intensely 
for month, only passed it in mid-January 2020, and it 
has now passed in both their House of Representatives 
and Congress. Now that both the U.S. and Mexico have 
ratified it, it is anticipated that it will become a priority 
for Parliament once the House resumes January 27th.
CUSMA will only come into force on the first day of the 
third month following the completion of its ratification 
by all three members.

Comprehensive and Progressive 
Trans-Pacific Partnership (CPTPP)
The CPTPP has been in effect since December 30, 2018;  
however, the only current CPTPP member that could 
benefit from the new market access into the Canadian 
chicken market, Chile, has yet to finalize its ratification 

process. Nonetheless, the Chilean legislative process is 
moving forward. The CPTPP will come into effect for Chile 
60 days following the conclusion of its ratification process.

Furthermore, the Canadian government has undertaken 
a public consultation regarding the accession of 
new countries to the CPTPP. It is Chicken Farmers of 
Canada’s position that Canada already made generous 
market access concessions to current CPTPP members 
and any additional future members must be satisfied 
with sharing this existing access.

Among the economies that have publicly announced 
their interest in joining the trade pact, Thailand poses 
a particular concern to the Canadian chicken sector. 
Already the world’s fourth largest chicken exporter after 
Brazil, the U.S., and the European Union, Thailand’s 
global exports are expected to grow from 835 million 
kilograms in 2018 to 900 million kilograms in 2019. It 
is currently Canada’s third largest source of chicken 
imports (cooked chicken products only), which have 
grown 261% from 2 million kilograms in 2010 to 7.4 
million kilograms in 2018. 

In the 2019 Federal Budget, the Liberal government 
committed to providing full and fair support to mitigate 
the impacts resulting from the CPTPP and CUSMA 
agreements on Canada’s poultry and egg farmers. 
Representatives from these sectors participated 
wholeheartedly in the Agriculture and Agri-Food Poultry 
Working Group that was convened in December 2018, 
working alongside government officials to calculate 
final impact estimates and develop a detailed list of 
programming recommendations, which was presented 
to the Minister in April. The suggested programs and 
initiatives were developed to ensure the long-term 
sustainability and competitiveness of the Canadian 
poultry and egg sectors.

Consequently, the Canadian chicken sector was 
deeply disappointed when it was informed that no 
new programming would be announced before the 
dissolution of Parliament. And by the end of 2019, no 
announcements had been made.
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HILL WATCH
Federal Election Results
The 43rd Canadian general election was held on October 
21st, 2019. The outcome of this election saw the Liberal 
Party of Canada secure a second term in government. 
However, this time, they will be governing with a minority 
government as they won 157 seats, 13 seats shy of the 
required 170 needed for a majority. The Conservative 
Party of Canada will form the Official Opposition with 
121 seats, while the Bloc Québécois picked up 22 seats to 
bring them to 32 in total. The NDP were left with 24 seats, 
the Green Party won 3 seats, and former Liberal MP Jody 
Wilson Raybould won her seat back as an independent.
 
There were some surprises on election night such as the 
change of the balance of power in the House of Commons 
with the Bloc retaining third party status and knocking 
the NDP to fourth. A strong sense of regionalism emerged 
during the election, with the almost-Conservative sweep 
from Winnipeg to the lower mainland in B.C. This was 
further apparent with the formation of a new Senate bloc 
of 11 senators following the election, calling themselves 
the “Canadian Senators Group” (CSG). The CSG formed 
as part of an effort to ensure that regional interests would 
be properly represented in the Senate. 
 
Prime Minister Justin Trudeau named his new cabinet 
on November 20th. Chicken Farmers of Canada looks 
forward to once again work alongside returning Minister 
of Agriculture and Agri-Food, Marie-Claude Bibeau; 
returning Minister of Finance, Bill Morneau; Minister 
of Middle Class Prosperity and Associate Minister of 
Finance, Mona Fortier; Minister of Small Business, Export 
Promotion and International Trade, Mary Ng; Minister 
of Health, Patty Hajdu; Minister of Public Safety and 
Emergency Preparedness, Bill Blair; and Deputy Prime 
Minister and Minister of Intergovernmental Affairs, 
Chrystia Freeland.

THE YOUNG FARMER 
PROGRAM UPDATE
2019 marked the launch of Chicken Farmers of Canada’s 
Young Farmers Program and since January, participants 

have been hard at work learning about the inner 
workings of the Canadian chicken industry! 
 
Farmers Jonathan Giret (ON), Nicholas Budd (NB), 
Frédéric Emery Dufresne (QC), Andre Poulin (AB) and 
Tiffany Martinka (SK) were selected to be the first crop 
of participants and have been keenly taking part in this 
amazing new program, opening doors to opportunities 
within Canadian agriculture.
 
In April, the participants attended the Canadian Young 
Farmer’s Forum in Toronto. This conference brings 
together young farmers from coast to coast for a weekend 
to learn about the different commodities in Canadian 
agriculture, learn about various ways to finance their 
farms, future planning, and of course, make connections 
with fellow young farmers. 

Then in early May, the group came to Ottawa for three 
days to attend various workshops and events, including 
Chicken Farmers of Canada’s Lobby Day. The Young 
Farmers participated in an intensive orientation seminar 
that gave them an in-depth look at what Chicken Farmers 
of Canada does on a day-to-day basis, how the Board 
of Directors functions, and the various projects Chicken 
Farmers of Canada staff has been working on. The group 
also partook in social media training from MediaStyle, 
where they learned how to tell their story and share it 
with the world.

In addition to this training, they participated in 
meetings during Lobby Day, connecting with Members 
of Parliament and Senators to discuss the important 
issues surrounding the chicken sector. They were also 
invited to lunch with Alberta MP Earl Dreeshen at the 
Parliamentary Dining Room. During this lunch, the young 
farmers learned about life as a Member of Parliament and 
the work all parties are doing to support the agriculture 
sector. Their time in Ottawa concluded with a behind-
the-scenes tour of Parliament Hill, followed by the 
Chicken Farmers of Canada’s Parliamentary Reception.

The Program gives young farmers the tools and training 
to continue growing their involvement in the industry, 
with the long-term goal of having them play a larger 
role in promoting and advocating for chicken farming in 
Canada. It’s an 18-month commitment with interactive 
meetings, training and events, such as some of those 
described above!
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BRANDING AND VEGAN 
ACTIVISM

The Raised by a Canadian Farmer 
Animal Care Program – Your Role, 
and Ours
We know that the Raised by a Canadian Farmer Animal 
Care Program impacts daily life and routines on the farm. 
We also know that it’s hard sometimes to see the bigger 
picture, to understand why this program is so important, 
and it’s easy to wonder whether it’s worth it.
We’re here to tell you that it is. 

The standards you uphold each day have an impact, 
and absolutely drive the credibility that chicken farmers 
have with consumers. Farmers are trusted, for good 
reason, and in order to maintain that trust, we all 
have a role to play. When you are committed to these 
programs, Chicken Farmers of Canada can work with 
partners throughout the value chain to provide them the 
assurance they need that farmers value the animals in 
their care and are committed to doing the right thing.  
As you know, the commitment of Canadian chicken 
farmers to animal welfare has become the target of 
various campaigns, most specifically against restaurant 
and retail companies, where they have been pressured 
through extortion of their brands into mandating 
changes to our industry’s practices.

As a counter to this, staff from Chicken Farmers of 
Canada and the Canadian Poultry and Egg Processors 
Council (CPEPC) have been holding meetings with 
major retail and restaurant companies all across the 
country. The primary objective of these meetings is 
to ensure that value chain members know that we are 
the primary source to turn to when they are confronted 
with activists, rather than caving to pressures that push 
unrealistic demands on their suppliers (processors and 
farmers). We need them to understand that they don’t 
need to reinvent the wheel when it comes to animal care 
– that the system we have in Canada is not just good 
enough – it’s very good, and in fact, it’s the envy of much  
of the world. 

In these meetings, we take the opportunity to explain 
the key differences between animal rights and animal 
welfare. We ensure the company understands while 
claiming to be advocating change for the betterment 

of industry practices, the real objective it to make it 
more difficult, more frustrating and more expensive for 
chicken farmers to do their jobs and ultimately, make it 
too expensive for consumers. It’s a “death of a thousand 
cuts”, designed to slowly chip away at the ability of 
farmers to raise animals for food.

We’re fine with people choosing to eat a vegan diet, but 
that choice must be made with facts, not myths. We’re 
always ready to adapt to the changing Canadian palate 
– but we’re not willing to do it when it’s being driven by 
activists who ultimately want to tell Canadians what to 
eat and to force our farmers out of business.

Within the strategy we are being proactive and trying to 
avoid what our friends and colleagues in the egg industry 
experienced a couple years ago. At that time, animal 
rights groups collectively decided that 2015 would be 
the “year of the egg,” and focused pressure on the U.S. 
and Canadian egg industry to make commitments for 
phasing out cages for laying hens. Companies and their 
brands were threatened, social media campaigns were 
launched, and to make the activists go away, many 
companies decided it would be easier to simply say yes. 
This saw the Retail Council of Canada (RCC) commit to 
sourcing only cage-free eggs by the end of 2025. 

Of course this was never really the activists’ end goal, 
and now, we are seeing that these groups are criticizing 
the very systems they advocated for – and, as always, 
ratcheting up their demands.  

And now, the activists have turned their attention to broilers.

Activist activity has increased in last two years, and 
after a small break this year, there’s been an increase 
in the last month (it seems that 2019/2020 may be the 
“year of the chicken”). Groups are sending emails to 
companies directly, demanding change and requesting 
to meet. When those requests are not answered, the 
groups subsequently make demands that the company 
commits to “higher welfare standards” for their Canadian 
broiler chicken supply. Among the demands they are 
making is a switch to slow growing broilers, and we see 
this as the next big topic in animal care that our industry 
will have to tackle. When that commitment isn’t made, 
the next step is to organize loud social media campaigns 
and demonstrations, designed to bully the companies 
into changing their policies. 

In response, we’ve developed what we like to call our 
“travelling roadshow.” To-date we have met with 14 
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companies (including McDonald’s, Metro, Loblaws, 
Walmart), as well as RCC and the Canadian Federation 
of Independent Grocers (CFIG). A meeting is planned for 
the Fall with Restaurants Canada, who represents all 
the major restaurant and food service companies in the 
country. As a result of these meetings we are confident 
that if companies are faced with activist demands, 
they will come to us first to find out the facts. We will 
provide them with all the support and information 
they need to defend our Canadian system and our 
Raised by a Canadian Farmer Animal Care Program. 
Feedback from the roadshow has been overwhelmingly 
positive and very complimentary towards the farming 
and processing sectors for the work being done within 
animal care, food safety, and sustainability.  

But how does this all relate back to the Animal Care 
Program and what you’re doing on-farm? YOU, all 2,800 
broiler chicken farmers in Canada, are the reason we 
have a great program to promote and defend. Your 
commitment to the program, the fact that we can say 
100% of our farms are certified, is an essential element 
for gaining the confidence of consumers, and retail 
and restaurant companies. We have a system they can 
defend to the activists or to their customers when they 
get questions. The goal has always been to maintain 
one national standard for farmers, and while there may 
always be a handful of stakeholders that want a different 
audit, overall, we are able to uphold our program as THE 
program in Canada. And it is your implementation of the 
program, each and every day, which allows us to do that. 

You are the reason we can say that chicken raised 
by Canadian farmers is truly excellent. And we do: 
The Raised by a Canadian Farmer brand was launched 
about five years ago, in the hopes that we could meet 
the growing demands of consumers to know where 
their chicken comes from – and we delivered. 

Shortly after launching the brand, though, we learned that 
consumers wanted the brand to stand for more than just 
country of origin – they wanted it to stand for quality, for 
excellence, and for commitment. We’re delivering again.

The brand now also represents farmers’ commitment 
to excellence in food safety, in animal care, and 
in environmental stewardship. That commitment 
resonates strongly with consumers. They know now that 
the Raised by a Canadian Farmer brand means that the 
chicken bearing the logo is a nutritious choice for their 
families, and that it’s raised by farmers they can trust. 

It’s resonating with restaurants and retailers, as well. 

More and more companies are adopting the brand to 
assure their customers of their commitment to sourcing 
Canadian chicken and to the excellence that the brand 
represents – which is what you are contributing to every 
day on your farm. 

GOVERNMENT INVESTS 
IN CANADIAN POULTRY 
RESEARCH
Chicken Farmers of Canada was very pleased by the 
announcement that Agriculture and Agri-Food Canada 
(AAFC) will again be supporting poultry research in 
Canada, this time through the AgriScience Program of 
the newly formed Canadian Agricultural Partnership.

The announcement was made on May 24th, at the 
Faculty of Veterinary Medicine at the University of 
Montreal in St. Hyacinthe by Minister Bibeau. 

“Our Government is committed to helping Canada’s 
poultry sector maintain consumer trust and stay on the 
cutting edge by finding new and innovative solutions 
to challenges faced by the industry,” said Marie-Claude 
Bibeau, Minister of Agriculture and Agri-Food. “This 
funding will play an important part in ensuring that the 
sector is able to continue to grow sustainably and do 
more to meet high consumer demand.”

“Chicken Farmers of Canada applauds the Government 
of Canada for its support of poultry research in Canada,” 
said Benoît Fontaine, Chair of Chicken Farmers of 
Canada. “The support we have received from Agriculture 
and Agri-Food Canada demonstrates awareness, at all 
levels, of our ongoing commitment to be innovative as 
we respond to evolving consumer demands.”

The Canadian Poultry Research Council (CPRC) 
submitted the application to AAFC for a poultry research 
cluster, supported by all the national poultry groups. 
This will now be the third time that CPRC is administering 
a national poultry cluster which addresses key research 
priorities for the sector.

“Funding for the third poultry science cluster allows the 
poultry industry to conduct research projects that reflect 
the priorities of the industry and Canadian consumers,” 
said Helen Anne Hudson, Chair of the Canadian 
Poultry Research Council. “Canadian poultry farmers 
are constantly evolving their production practices 
in response to these priorities which include: the 
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enhancement of the health and welfare of the animals, 
improving food safety, development of innovations in 
antimicrobial alternatives and vaccines development, as 
well as research in preserving the environment and long-
term sustainability of the poultry industry in Canada. 
As part of the cluster, funding will also be used for 
knowledge and technology transfer to farmers and other 
poultry value chain members such as input suppliers, 
processors and the retail component of the industry.”

The AAFC Cluster provides an opportunity to 
significantly leverage industry funding as the federal 
government will support projects at a rate of 70% and 
will allow another 15% to be covered by provincial 
funding. The total Cluster budget is over $12 million, 
with AAFC contributing up to $8.24 million. 

The poultry cluster provides capacity to resolve many 
current issues facing the poultry industry. The unique 
cooperation among scientists, industry partners and 
government departments across Canada will synergize 
efforts to address these issues. 

This funding, which is in addition to an investment of 
$3.78M from industry, will be used to develop new 
products and processes to address threats to the 
poultry value chain and improve poultry health and 
welfare. It also aims to develop best management 
practices at the farm level to improve food safety and 
reinforce public trust.

The project builds on the successes of two previous 
poultry clusters and is expected to result in the 
development of alternatives to antibiotics through 
research on antimicrobial use and resistance, as well as 
healthier and safer products by the poultry food chain. 
The research is also expected to lead to improvements 
to the health and welfare of turkeys and laying hens and 
maintain the long-term viability of the poultry value chain 
through improved bird production, virus benchmarking, 
development of precision agriculture tools, and controls 
on effluents from production operations affecting the 
environment and greenhouse gases.

This Cluster includes 19 different research projects 
under the following themes:

	� Antimicrobial use and resistance

	� Food safety

	� Poultry health and welfare

	� Sustainability 

As part of the Cluster, CPRC will be including a 
knowledge translation and transfer (KTT) initiative to 
ensure that the results of the research are disseminated 
to industry stakeholders. For more information on 
previous research projects, check out CPRC’s website at 
http://cp-rc.ca/.

Chicken Farmers of Canada, along with the four other 
national poultry organizations, established CPRC back 
in 2001 to foster innovation, science and education 
within poultry research. The Council was established 
with a mandate to create and implement programs for 
research and development that address current and 
future industry needs.

Since its inception, CPRC has allocated over $4.4 million 
to foster poultry research, and these funds have been 
leveraged to over $25 million.

AGRICULTURE MINISTER 
ACKNOWLEDGES 
CANADA’S CHICKEN 
FARMERS AS LEADERS IN 
SUSTAINABILITY
The Honourable Marie-Claude Bibeau, Minister of 
Agriculture, recently wrote to Chicken Farmers of 
Canada to acknowledge the great work that our sector 
has done to ensure the sustainability of our industry: 
“Past and current programs and policies have helped 
Chicken Farmers of Canada become a leader in 
sustainability. The federal government is proud to 
support the poultry and egg industry in that regard.”

The letter from Minister Bibeau was received after we 
shared with her our updated Sustainability Report, 
highlighting the excellent results from our recently 
completed life cycle assessment (LCA). This was part 
of Chicken Farmers of Canada’s campaign to promote 
the LCA results throughout the year to all stakeholders, 
including government, retail and restaurant 
companies, and consumers. 

The LCA results were released in 2018 and we spent 
2019 celebrating and reflecting on the results, while 
also evaluating next steps to further our commitment 
to continuous improvement. 
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STATISTICS

Pricing for Specialty Chicken - 2019  (kilograms live weight)
Silkie Chicken
A-154  $4.14 

A-155  $4.14 

A-156  $4.14 

A-157  $4.14 

A-158  $4.14 

A-159  $4.17 

A-160  $4.17 

Pricing for Specialty Chicken - 2019   (kilograms live weight)
TC Chicken

Loong Kong Bradner SD Bradner Long Cycle Shondon or Hong Kong golden
A-154  $2.73  $2.72  $2.84  $2.73 

A-155  $2.71  $2.71  $2.82  $2.71 

A-156  $2.71  $2.71  $2.82  $2.71 

A-157  $2.71  $2.72  $2.83  $2.74 

A-158  $2.71  $2.72  $2.83  $2.74 

A-159  $2.72  $2.72  $2.84  $2.75 

A-160  $2.72  $2.72  $2.84  $2.75 

Levy Rates (cents/kg)
Province Provincial 

Levy
CFC Levy Total 

Levy
BC 1.45 0.55 2.00

Alberta 1.20 0.55 1.75

Saskatchewan 1.16 0.55 1.71

Manitoba 1.50 0.55 2.05

Ontario 1.60 0.55 2.15

Quebec 1.51 0.55 2.06

NB 0.85 0.55 1.40

NS 0.99 0.55 1.54

PEI 1.20 0.55 1.75

NFLD 1.04 0.55 1.59

Source:  CFC effective June 9, 2019

2019 BC Broiler Quota Marketing Periods
Amount of quota marketings going through licence 
agencies in 2019:

Period Start 
Date

End
Date

Mainstream 
Quota Utilization

A-154 23-Dec-18 16-Feb-19 109.35%

A-155 17-Feb-19 13-Apr-19 118.06%

A-156 14-Apr-19 8-Jun-19 120.44%

A-157 9-Jun-19 3-Aug-19 119.14%

A-158 4-Aug-19 28-Sep-19 120.64%

A-159 29-Sep-19 23-Nov-19 117.65%

A-160 24-Nov-19 18-Jan-20 111.13%
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Total Provincial Production (kilograms live weight)
Year Type Domestic Market Development Total

2019 Mainstream  236,420,747  10,611,725  247,082,472

   Broilers  228,000,446 10,611,725 238,662,171 

   Organic 8,420,301 0 8,420,301 

Specialty  7,844,646  363,216 8,207,862 

    TC 7,052,042  0   7,052,042 

    Silkie 792,604  363,216 1,155,820 

Total 244,265,393  11,024,941  255,290,334 

Year Type Domestic Market Development Total

2018 Mainstream  234,679,130  11,662,488  246,341,618 

   Broilers  227,884,444  11,662,488  239,546,932 

   Organic  6,794,686  0  6,794,686 

Specialty  6,905,871  236,917  7,142,788 

    TC  5,979,071  0    5,979,071 

    Silkie  926,800  236,917  1,163,717 

Total  241,585,001  11,899,405  253,484,406 

In 2019 BC Produced 0.71 % more than  in 2018

2019 BC Allocations received from CFC (Kg eviscerated weight)
Period Domestic (Broiler and 

Organic)
Market Development (Broiler, 
Organic and Specialty)

Specialty Allocation 
(TC and Silkie)

TOTAL 
ALLOCATION

A-154  24,240,038  1,631,700  866,349  26,738,087 

A-155  26,206,607  1,834,560  930,738  28,971,905 

A-156  26,731,659  1,860,285  882,416  29,474,360 

A-157  27,044,784  2,060,205  997,569  30,102,558 

A-158  26,718,271  2,066,453  979,045  29,763,769 

A-159  26,762,101  1,182,395  878,199  28,822,695 

A-160  25,336,375  1,180,410  928,833  27,445,618 

Numbers provided by CFC

Mainstream Posted Live Price - 2019 Difference

Province A-154 A-155 A-156 A-157 A-158 A-159 A-160 (Jan - Dec)
BC  $1.6290  $1.6510  $1.6450  $1.6470  $1.6910  $1.7070  $1.6970  $0.0680 
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Provincial Quota Holdings 2019 (kgs live weight/cycle)
Lower  Mainland Vancouver  Island Interior Total
Growers Kilograms Growers Kilograms Growers Kilograms Growers % Kilograms %

Mainstream 219  26,747,446 9  562,067 50 3,909,473 278 90% 31,218,986 98%

Specialty 30  879,301 0  0   0  0   30 10%  879,301 2%

Total 249 27,626,747 9  562,067 50 3,909,473 308 100% 32,098,287 100%

% 81% 86% 3% 2% 16% 12%

2,000 bird 
(annual)  
Permit 
Holders

22 25 75 122

We have 308 Registered growers as 6 growers hold both Mainstream and Specialty Quota and are only included once.
Numbers do not include the research permit holder.

2019 Provincial Farm Gate Sales

Mainstream  $464,078,591.51 

Specialty (TC)  $19,388,078.33 

Organic  $30,722,069.65 

Specialty (Silkie)  $4,795,001.83 

Total  $518,983,741.31 

Sales Growth of "GROWN IN BC"
Chicken in Millions of Kilograms (Evisc Wt.)

1986
1989

1992
1995

1998

2001

2005

2008 2011

1983

2004*

2014
2017

2019

37,791,890 kg
49,435,000 kg

62,730,000 kg
74,356,000 kg

100,233,058 kg

117,669,877 kg

141,059,793 kg

120,464,614 kg

154,374,498 kg

157,383,944 kg 153,678,565 kg 160,944,862 kg
171,361,368 kg

187,638,395 kg

*(avian influenza)
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Audit, Legal,
Consulting

BCCGA
Operating Grant

Board Member
Expenses

Salaries
& Benefits

CFC Levy
Rent

Operations

Depreciation

British Columbia Chicken Marketing Board 
Operating Budget 2020
Revenue
Levies 5,203,352

Licenses 7,500

Permits 4,000

Domestic lease fees 67,500

Interest 48,800

Other 27,000

Total Revenue 5,358,152

Expenses
Audit, Legal, Consulting 350,000

BCCGA operating grant 706,000

Board member expenses 430,000

CFC Levy 1,452,800

Rent 130,000

Salaries and benefits 1,055,000

Operations 1,027,000

Depreciation 57,000

Total Expenses 5,207,800

Surplus 150,352

Sales Growth of "GROWN IN BC"
Chicken in Millions of Kilograms (Evisc Wt.)

1986
1989

1992
1995

1998

2001

2005

2008 2011

1983

2004*

2014
2017

2019

37,791,890 kg
49,435,000 kg

62,730,000 kg
74,356,000 kg

100,233,058 kg

117,669,877 kg

141,059,793 kg

120,464,614 kg

154,374,498 kg

157,383,944 kg 153,678,565 kg 160,944,862 kg
171,361,368 kg

187,638,395 kg

*(avian influenza)
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Management's Responsibility

To the Members of The British Columbia Chicken Marketing Board:

Management is responsible for the preparation and presentation of the accompanying financial statements, including responsibility for
significant accounting judgments and estimates in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations and
ensuring that all information in the annual report is consistent with the statements. This responsibility includes selecting appropriate
accounting principles and methods, and making decisions affecting the measurement of transactions in which objective judgment is
required.

In discharging its responsibilities for the integrity and fairness of the financial statements, management designs and maintains the
necessary accounting systems and related internal controls to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are authorized, assets
are safeguarded and financial records are properly maintained to provide reliable information for the preparation of financial statements.

The Board of Directors and Audit Committee are composed entirely of Members who are neither management nor employees of the
British Columbia Chicken Marketing Board. The Board is responsible for overseeing management in the performance of its financial
reporting responsibilities, and for approving the financial information included in the annual report. The Board fulfils these responsibilities
by reviewing the financial information prepared by management and discussing relevant matters with management and external
auditors. The Committee is also responsible for recommending the appointment of the Board's external auditors.

MNP LLP is appointed by the Members to audit the financial statements and report directly to them; their report follows. The external
auditors have full and free access to, and meet periodically and separately with, both the Committee and management to discuss their
audit findings.

February 13, 2020

Executive Director
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Independent Auditor's Report

To the Members of the British Columbia Chicken Marketing Board: 

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of the British Columbia Chicken Marketing Board (the "Organization"), which comprise the
statement of financial position as at December 31, 2019, and the statements of operations, changes in net assets and cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Organization as
at December 31, 2019, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Canadian
accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. Our responsibilities under those standards
are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Organization in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Canada, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with Canadian accounting
standards for not-for-profit organizations, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Organization’s ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Organization or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Organization’s financial reporting process.

Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if,
individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in
the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Organization’s internal
control.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on

300 - 32988 South Fraser Way, Abbotsford, British Columbia, V2S 2A8, Phone: (604) 853-9471, 1 (877) 853-9471
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the Organization’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor's report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Organization to cease to continue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

Abbotsford, British Columbia

February 13, 2020 Chartered Professional Accountants
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British Columbia Chicken Marketing Board
Statement of Financial Position

As at December 31, 2019

2019 2018

Assets
Current

Cash and cash equivalents 1,157,834 350,378
Accounts receivable 730,754 610,215
Prepaid expenses 102,975 77,623

1,991,563 1,038,216

Capital assets (Note 3) 256,645 229,780

Investments restricted for contingency fund (Note 4) 2,222,334 2,179,550

4,470,542 3,447,546

Liabilities
Current

Accounts payable and accruals (Note 11) 437,803 478,009
Government remittances payable 37,031 6,894
Deferred revenue 35,978 20,993

510,812 505,896

Commitments (Note 5)

Net Assets
Invested in capital assets 256,645 229,780
Restricted for contingency fund 2,222,334 2,179,550
Unrestricted 1,480,751 532,320

3,959,730 2,941,650

4,470,542 3,447,546

Approved on behalf of the Board

Director Director

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these  financial statements
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British Columbia Chicken Marketing Board
Statement of Operations

For the year ended December 31, 2019

2019 2018

Revenues
Grower assessments (Note 6) 5,074,446 4,816,382
Overmarketing levies 264,024 363,215
Domestic lease income 143,890 27,418
Grant funding 100,144 11,332
Interest and sundry 53,921 75,923
Licenses 6,860 8,000
Permit fees 4,120 2,800

5,647,405 5,305,070

Operational expenses (Schedule 1) 4,629,325 5,541,808

Excess (deficiency of) revenues over expenses 1,018,080 (236,738)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these  financial statements

2
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British Columbia Chicken Marketing Board
Statement of Changes in Net Assets

For the year ended December 31, 2019

Invested in
capital assets

Restricted for
contingency

fund

Unrestricted 2019 2018

Net assets, beginning of year 229,780 2,179,550 532,320 2,941,650 4,126,958

Excess (deficiency of) revenues over expenses (29,920) - 1,048,000 1,018,080 (236,738)

Distribution of prior year's surplus  (Note 9) - - - - (948,570)

Investment in capital assets (net)  56,785 - (56,785) - -

Income reinvested in investments restricted for
contingency fund  

- 42,784 (42,784) - -

Net assets, end of year 256,645 2,222,334 1,480,751 3,959,730 2,941,650

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these  financial statements
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British Columbia Chicken Marketing Board
Statement of Cash Flows

For the year ended December 31, 2019

2019 2018

Cash provided by (used for) the following activities
Operating

Excess (deficiency of) revenues over expenses 1,018,080 (236,738)
Amortization 29,921 26,123

1,048,001 (210,615)
Changes in working capital accounts

Accounts receivable (120,539) (9,616)
Prepaid expenses (25,352) (33,547)
Accounts payable and accruals (40,205) 243,090
Government remittances payable 30,137 (9,306)
Deferred revenue 14,985 (8,337)

907,027 (28,331)

Financing
Distribution of prior year's operating surplus to growers - (948,570)

Investing
Purchase of capital assets (56,787) (83,768)
Purchase of investments restricted for contingency fund (42,784) (48,275)
Redemption of investments in contingency fund - 435,000

(99,571) 302,957

Increase (decrease) in cash resources 807,456 (673,944)
Cash resources, beginning of year 350,378 1,024,322

Cash resources, end of year 1,157,834 350,378

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these  financial statements
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British Columbia Chicken Marketing Board
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2019

1. Organization

The British Columbia Chicken Marketing Board ("the Board") was established in 1961 by the Natural Products Marketing
(British Columbia) Act to promote, control and regulate the transportation, processing, packing, storage, and marketing of all
classes of chicken in British Columbia.  The Board is a non-profit agricultural organization and is exempt from income taxes
pursuant to subsection 149(1)(e) of the Income Tax Act.

2. Significant accounting policies

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit
organizations set out in Part III of the CPA Canada Handbook - Accounting, as issued by the Accounting Standards Board
in Canada, and include the following significant accounting policies:

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and term deposits with banks. Term deposits subject to restrictions that
prevent its use for current purposes are included in investments restricted for contingency fund.

Capital assets

Purchased capital assets are recorded at cost.

Amortization is provided using the declining balance method at rates intended to amortize the cost of assets over their
estimated useful lives. 

Rate
Computer hardware 30 %
Computer software 100 %
Furniture and office equipment 10 %
Website and internally developed software 20 %

No amortization is recorded for capital assets acquired but not put into service at year-end.

Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the remaining life of the lease agreement at the time
the leasehold improvement is purchased.

Long-lived assets

Long-lived assets consist of capital assets. Long-lived assets held for use are measured and amortized as described in the
applicable accounting policies.

The Board performs impairment testing on long-lived assets held for use whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value of an asset, or group of assets, may not be recoverable. Impairment losses are recognized
when undiscounted future cash flows from its use and disposal are less than the asset’s carrying amount.  Impairment is
measured as the amount by which the asset’s carrying value exceeds its fair value.  Any impairment is included in the
statement of operations for the year.

Prices for similar items are used to measure fair value of long-lived assets.

5
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British Columbia Chicken Marketing Board
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2019

2. Significant accounting policies  (Continued from previous page)

Fund accounting

In order to ensure observance of limitations and restrictions placed on the use of resources available to the Board, the
accounts are maintained on a fund accounting basis. Accordingly, resources are classified for accounting and reporting
purposes into funds. These funds are held in accordance with the objectives specified by the contributors or in accordance
with the directives issued by the Board of Directors. 

Unrestricted Fund
The Unrestricted Fund reports the revenues and expenses related to general and ancillary operations of the Board.

Capital Assets Fund
The Capital Assets Fund reports the Board’s capital assets and presents the flow of funds related to their acquisition and
disposal, unexpended capital resources and debt commitments.

Restricted for Contingency Fund
The Restricted Contingency Fund is pursuant to Part 15 "Distribution of Board Operating Surplus" of the General Orders, to
which the Board has established a fund represented by cash and cash equivalents in the minimum amount of $2,000,000
and not to exceed one year of budgeted Board expenses, to be used to fund expenditures for unforeseen circumstances.
Any amount deemed to be in excess to the set level of the contingency will be distributed to growers in proportion to the
amount of the levy paid by a grower. The Board has reserved the right to change the amount required in the Restricted
Contingency Fund and/or the levy rate at any time. In order to qualify for a distribution, a grower must be in good standing
and be a current grower with the Board at the time that a distribution is declared. Investment income generated will be re-
invested into the Restricted for Contingency Fund. 

Revenue recognition

Grower assessments are recognized as revenue when chickens are shipped to the processors and collectability is
reasonably assured. Overmarketing levies in respect to quota usage during a production period are calculated and invoiced
to the grower approximately three weeks after the end of the production period. Overmarketing levies are recognized on the
date of each individual grower’s shipment, when collectability is reasonably assured.

Domestic lease charges, payable to the Board in respect to quota usage during a production period, are invoiced in
accordance with part 43 of the August 26, 2011 General Orders.

Revenue from other sources are recorded when services are provided or collectability is reasonably assured. 

Measurement uncertainty

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with Canadian accounting standards for not-for-profit organizations
requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and
disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenues
and expenses during the reporting period. 

Accounts receivable are stated after evaluation as to their collectability and an appropriate allowance for doubtful accounts
is provided where considered necessary. Amortization is based on the estimated useful lives of capital assets.

These estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically and, as adjustments become necessary, they are reported in
the statement of operations in the period in which they become known. 

6
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British Columbia Chicken Marketing Board
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2019

2. Significant accounting policies  (Continued from previous page)

Financial instruments

The Board recognizes its financial instruments when the Board becomes party to the contractual provisions of the financial
instrument. All financial instruments are initially recorded at their fair value, including financial assets and liabilities
originated and issued in a related party transaction with management. Financial assets and liabilities originated and issued
in all other related party transactions are initially measured at their carrying or exchange amount in accordance with Section
3840 Related Party Transactions.

At initial recognition, the Board may irrevocably elect to subsequently measure any financial instrument at fair value. The
Board has not made such an election during the year.

The Board subsequently measures investments in equity instruments quoted in an active market and all derivatives at fair
value. Fair value is determined by quoted price quotations. Investments in equity instruments not quoted in an active market
are subsequently measured at cost less impairment. All other financial assets and liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortized cost. 

Transaction costs and financing fees directly attributable to the origination, acquisition, issuance or assumption of financial
instruments subsequently measured at fair value are immediately recognized in the statement of operations for the current
period. Conversely, transaction costs and financing fees are added to the carrying amount for those financial instruments
subsequently measured at cost or amortized cost.

Financial asset impairment

The Board assesses impairment of all of its financial assets measured at cost or amortized cost. The Board groups assets
for impairment testing when there are numerous assets affected by the same factors. Management considers whether there
has been a breach in contract, such as a default or delinquency in interest or principal payments in determining whether
objective evidence of impairment exists. When there is an indication of impairment, the Board determines whether it has
resulted in a significant adverse change in the expected timing or amount of future cash flows during the year. If so, the
Board reduces the carrying amount of any impaired financial assets to the highest of: the present value of cash flows
expected to be generated by holding the assets; the amount that could be realized by selling the assets; and the amount
expected to be realized by exercising any rights to collateral held against those assets. Any impairment, which is not
considered temporary, is included in current year statement of operations.

The Board reverses impairment losses on financial assets when there is a decrease in impairment and the decrease can be
objectively related to an event occurring after the impairment loss was recognized. The amount of the reversal is recognized
in the statement of operations in the year the reversal occurs.

3. Capital assets 

2019 2018
Accumulated Net book Net book

Cost amortization value value

Computer hardware 271,144 216,004 55,140 20,450
Computer software 159,191 159,191 - -
Furniture and office equipment 357,444 328,466 28,978 32,198
Leasehold improvements 212,542 209,417 3,125 -
Website and internally developed software 288,077 118,675 169,402 177,132

1,288,398 1,031,753 256,645 229,780

Included in website and internally developed software is $121,291 of costs for software under development, for which no
amortization has been taken (2018 - $116,993).

7
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British Columbia Chicken Marketing Board
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2019

4. Investments restricted for contingency fund 

Investments restricted for contingency fund consist of six term deposits which bear interest at 1.96%, maturing in May 2024.
In the prior year, the investment restricted for contingency fund consisted of six term deposits which earned interest at
1.94%, which were renewed in May 2019. 

5. Commitments 

(a)  The Board leases office space with monthly rent of $4,724 (2018 -  $4,724) until June 30, 2020, including triple net
expenses. 

(b) The Board has entered into a contract to receive IT support with monthly fees of $2,100 (2018 - $2,100), which can be
cancelled upon request with computer hardware buyout.

(c) The Board has signed agreements for social media management services with monthly costs of $1,000 (2018 - $1,000),
which can be cancelled upon request.

(d) The Board has entered into an agreement with Alberta Chicken Producers and Chicken Farmers of Saskatchewan to
develop and license a computer software program ("Grower Program"). As at December 31, 2019, $121,291 has been paid
toward development of the software. The Board has committed to pay its share of the cost to complete the program, as well
as its share of hosting and maintenance costs on a monthly basis.

(e) The Board has entered into a 10-year lease agreement for office space commencing January 14, 2020. Annual rents,
including triple net expenses, are as follows: years 1 to 3 annual rent of $117,347, years 4 to 6 annual rent of $124,568, and
years 7 to 10 annual rent of $131,789.

(f) The Board has entered into four vehicle leases and two equipment leases with total scheduled payments (including GST
and PST) as follows: 

2020 26,429
2021 25,610
2022 3,558
2023 2,965

6. Grower assessments

The levy on all growers is 2.00 cents (2018 - 1.90) per kilogram, live weight on all chicken grown in British Columbia which
is inclusive of the CFC service fee.  Of the levy assessed, 0.55 cents (2018 - 0.53) is remitted to the CFC for services
provided.

7. Unused credit facility 

The Board has the following credit facilities with the Bank of Montreal:

(a) $640,000 revolving facility for general operating requirements by way of Letters of Credit/Guarantee or Operating
Demand Loans. This facility bears interest at bank prime (3.95% at December 31, 2019). The borrowings under this facility
are due on demand.

Under this facility, a Demand Guarantee of $268,275 has been issued to the Chicken Farmers of Canada ("CFC") as a
means of securing the forwarding of levies and service fees to CFC. The borrowings under this facility are due on demand
and would be triggered in the event that the Board did not remit payment for their levies.

(b) $300,000 settlement risk facility for facilitating the utilization of hedge, wire or electronic funds transfer products.

The credit facilities are secured by a general security agreement covering all assets of the Board and a general assignment
of book debts of the Board.

8
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British Columbia Chicken Marketing Board
Notes to the Financial Statements

For the year ended December 31, 2019

8. Related party transactions 

The following related party transactions occurred during the year:

A net operating grant totaling $686,981 (2018 - $746,130) and rent expense of $60,000 (2018 - $60,000) were paid to the
British Columbia Chicken Growers Association ("BCCGA"), incorporated under the Society Act of British Columbia. As at
December 31, 2019, the BCCGA had a surplus of revenues over expenditures of $139,544 (2018 - deficit of $35,760).
$93,824 (2018- $Nil) was returned to the Board reducing the operating grant from $686,981 to $593,157 (included in
accounts receivable).

In 2019, the Board started paying for the operating expenses of BCCGA's Poultry in Motion program for a total expense of
$72,532.

The BCCGA's mandate is to unite commercial chicken growers for the betterment of the industry and act as a liaison
between the chicken growers, marketing boards, industry and government. It is primarily funded by a grant from the Board
which approves the Association's annual operating budget. 

These transactions were in the normal course of operations and were measured at the exchange amount, which is the
amount of consideration established and agreed to by the related parties. 

9. Distribution of prior years' surplus

The Board distributes a surplus to growers based upon the total surplus calculated as select current assets less select
current liabilities and deferred revenue at year-end less one month's budgeted operating expenses. The following outlines
the funds that were distributed to growers in good standing and were based on the total kilograms of chicken shipped by the
growers in the year the surplus occurred:

2019 $   nil

2018 $   948,570

2017 $   nil

2016 $   843,525

2015 $   722,428

10. Trust assets and liabilities

As at December 31, 2019 the Board held funds in trust with respect to the New Entrants Program for Growers. Trust assets
held totaled $20,000 (2018 - $nil), which are included in cash and cash equivalents as well as accounts payable and
accruals.

11. National overmarketing levy

During the year, the Board was assessed a national overmarketing levy by Chicken Farmers of Canada of $204,519 for
periods A-152 and A-153, of which $188,993 was accrued in the prior year. Management estimates that a levy of $179,506
will be assessed for periods A-158 and A-159. This amount is included in accounts payable at December 31, 2019.

12. Financial instruments 

The Board, as part of its operations, carries a number of financial instruments. It is management's opinion that the Board is
not exposed to significant interest, currency, credit, liquidity or other price risks arising from these financial instruments
except as otherwise disclosed.

Credit concentration

As at December 31, 2019, six processors (2018 - six) accounted for 59% (2018 - 59%) of trade accounts receivable. The
Board believes that there is no unusual exposure associated with the collection of these receivables. The Board performs
regular credit assessments of its customers and provides allowances for potentially uncollectible accounts receivable.

9
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British Columbia Chicken Marketing Board
Schedule 1 - Schedule of Operational Expenses

For the year ended December 31, 2019

2019 2018

Operational expenses
Advertising and promotion 84,340 171,505
Amortization 29,921 26,123
Bank charges and interest 6,599 7,071
Board members' remuneration, travel and meals 422,078 515,599
British Columbia Chicken Growers Association (Note 8) 593,157 746,130
Chicken Farmers of Canada levy (Note 6) 1,382,120 1,343,581
Computer installation and consulting 88,133 106,435
Consulting fees 77,787 128,530
Dues, memberships and subscriptions 16,210 15,692
Insurance 6,218 6,411
National overmarketing levy (Note 11) 195,032 508,552
Office supplies and expenses 53,102 59,590
PPAC 5,577 3,686
Postage 1,508 7,875
Poultry Euthanasia Workshops 16,078 -
Poultry In Motion (Note 8) 72,532 -
Poultry biosecurity 3,240 6,600
Professional fees 103,991 315,670
Rent (Note 8) 116,189 116,558
Repairs and maintenance 17,326 10,988
SMAC 1,240 1,988
Salaries and benefits 1,052,929 1,075,162
Staff travel 101,991 123,191
Strategic plan initiatives 159,351 210,546
Supply Management BC funding 2,165 13,587
Telephone 20,511 20,738

4,629,325 5,541,808

10
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BCCGA FINANCIAL 
STATEMENTS

16 %

13%

29%
6%

4%

11%

6 % 

12 % 

1% 2%
Annual Picnics,

Dinners, BC Poultry
Conference

Audit, Legal,
Consulting

BCCGA Director
Expenses  (Incl. travel) 

BC Poultry
Association Dues 

Windermere O�ice
Building 

Poultry in
Motion Coordinator

Per Diems

Administrators

Manager  (incl. travel)

Donations Operations

BC Chicken Growers’ Association Proposed 
Budget 2020
REVENUE
BCCMB Operating Grant 706,000.00 

Rental Income Windermere Office 35,000.00 

BCBHEPA Poultry in Motion cost share 13,000.00 

TOTAL REVENUE 754,000.00 

EXPENSES
Annual Picnics, Dinners, BC Poultry 
Conference

95,000.00 

Audit, Legal, Consulting 122,500.00 

BCCGA Director Expenses (incl. travel) 217,100.00 

Windermere Office Building 30,700.00 

BC Poultry Association Dues 44,000.00 

Poultry in Motion Coordinator Per Diems 84,500.00 

Manager - (incl. travel) 91,000.00 

Administrators 45,000.00 

Donations 5,000.00 

Operations 19,200.00 

TOTAL EXPENSES 754,000.00 
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BCCGA FUNDING & USE REPORT 2019: 
BUDGET VS ACTUAL

Directors Per Diem
Association Manager Honorarium
Administrators’ Honorariums
Poultry in Motion Coordinators/ Per Diems
Audit/ Legal/ Consulting
Amortization
Advertising & Promotions
PiM Operating Expenses
BC Poultry Conference/ Dinners/ Picnic
Chicken Golf Tournament
Conferences & Seminars
Memberships, Dues & Subscriptions
Insurance
O�ice/ Bank Expenses
Property Taxes
Meetings/ Refreshments
Telecommunications
Strata Fees
BC Poultry Association
Travel & Meals
Donations

748,955
748,955

-

843,185
797,465

45,720

51,298
117,760
(66,462)

(51,298)
(35,951)
(15,346)

(94,230)
(48,510)
(45,720)

-
81,809

(81,809)

-
58,065

(58,065)

-
10,695

(10,695)

-
47,370

(47,370)

BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE
REVENUES:
BCCMB Operating Revenue
Rental Income
BCCMB Grant Poultry in Motion Program
BCBHEPA Poultry in Motion Cost share
Grant Income
Chicken Golf Tournament
Miscellaneous Income

BCCMB OPERATING SURPLUS

EXPENSES:

TOTAL REVENUE
TOTAL EXPENSE
NET

Total Variance

-
-

73,604
14,178
14,776
85,496

-

93,824

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-
-

51,298
-

-

-
-
-
-
-

51,298
-

-

18,662
60,000

1,837
19,978
58,847
15,827

779
91,005
11,236
85,496

1,979
27

3,360
567

1,254
212
153

-
114

4,022
1,053

18,299
9,000
3,500
4,050
3,495

-
150

-
20,000

-
450

-
-

290
-

1,100
225

-
11,000

9,750
500

16,246
-

3,408
5,049
1,730

-
72

-
17,753
51,298

153
-
-

233
-

1,058
248

-
10,972

9,147
395

2,053
9,000

92
999

1,765
-

78
-

2,247
51,298

297
-
-

57
-

42
23

-
29

603
105

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

16,635
6,000
3,500
4,050
2,330

-
150

-
10,000

-
150

-
-
-
-

275
75

-
4,400
6,500
4,000

14,769
-

3,408
5,049
1,153

-
72

-
8,876

-
51

-
-
-
-

264
83

-
4,389
6,098
3,158

1,866
6,000

92
999

1,177
-

78
-

1,124
-

99
-
-
-
-

11
8
-

11
402
842

Actual 2019

675,955
60,000
73,604
27,178
14,776
85,496

-

93,824

147,688
-

68,163
100,978

57,653
15,827

721
91,005
88,764
85,496

1,021
3,473
1,140
2,333
7,246
5,288
1,653

10,205
43,886
60,978

3,947

Budget 2019

675,955
60,000

-
13,000

-
-
-

-

166,350
60,000
70,000
81,000

116,500
-

1,500
-

100,000
-

3,000
3,500
4,500
2,900
8,500
5,500
1,500

10,205
44,000
65,000

5,000

Nurture existing relationships 
and develop new relationships 
with key industry stakeholders

Educate Government on 
the chicken industry

Directors Per Diem
Association Manager Honorarium
Administrators’ Honorariums
Poultry in Motion Coordinators/ Per Diems
Audit/ Legal/ Consulting
Amortization
Advertising & Promotions
PiM Operating Expenses
BC Poultry Conference/ Dinners/ Picnic
Chicken Golf Tournament
Conferences & Seminars
Memberships, Dues & Subscriptions
Insurance
O�ice/ Bank Expenses
Property Taxes
Meetings/ Refreshments
Telecommunications
Strata Fees
BC Poultry Association
Travel & Meals
Donations

BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCEBUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE

-
192,078

(192,078)

-
121,297

(121,297)

-
70,780

(70,780)

-
48,908

(48,908)

-
39,496

(39,496)

-
(9,412)
(9,412)

-
49,348

(49,348)

-
38,175

(38,175)

-
11,172

(11,172)

       

Collaborate with appropriate 
industry stakeholders to 
develop tools needed by 

producers to address variability 
in production levels

BCCMB Operating Revenue
Rental Income
BCCMB Grant Poultry in Motion Program
BCBHEPA Poultry in Motion Cost share
Grant Income
Chicken Golf Tournament
Miscellaneous Income

BCCMB OPERATING SURPLUS

EXPENSES:

TOTAL REVENUE
TOTAL EXPENSE
NET

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

13,308
6,000
3,500

-
-
-

150
-

10,000
-

300
-
-
-
-

275
75

-
8,800
6,500

-

11,815
-

3,408
-
-
-

72
-

8,876
-

102
-
-
-
-

264
83

-
8,777
6,098

-

1,493
6,000

92
-
-
-

78
-

1,124
-

198
-
-
-
-

11
8
-

23
402

-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

24,953
6,000
3,500

-
3,495

-
-
-
-
-

150
-
-
-
-

275
75

-
4,400
6,500

-

22,153
-

3,408
-

1,730
-
-
-
-
-

51
-
-
-
-

264
83

-
4,389
6,098

-

2,799
6,000

92
-

1,765
-
-
-
-
-

99
-
-
-
-

11
8
-

11
402

-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

41,588
12,000

7,000
-

102,520
-

150
-

10,000
-

150
-
-

145
-

825
300

-
4,400

13,000
-

36,922
-

6,816
-

50,735
-

72
-

8,876
-

51
-
-

117
-

793
331

-
4,389

12,196
-

4,666
12,000

184
-

51,785
-

78
-

1,124
-

99
-
-

28
-

32
31

-
11

804
-

Producers receive prices that 
provide a stable income which 

enables them to cover production 
costs and form a sustainable, 

subsidy free industry

Participate with industry 
stakeholders in developing 

disease strategies

REVENUES:
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Directors Per Diem
Association Manager Honorarium
Administrators’ Honorariums
Poultry in Motion Coordinators/ Per Diems
Audit/ Legal/ Consulting
Amortization
Advertising & Promotions
PiM Operating Expenses
BC Poultry Conference/ Dinners/ Picnic
Chicken Golf Tournament
Conferences & Seminars
Memberships, Dues & Subscriptions
Insurance
O�ice/ Bank Expenses
Property Taxes
Meetings/ Refreshments
Telecommunications
Strata Fees
BC Poultry Association
Travel & Meals
Donations

BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCEBUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE

13,000
121,940

(108,940)

115,558
236,502

(120,944)

(102,558)
(114,562)

(12,004)

-
46,102

(46,102)

-
37,269

(37,269)

-
(8,833)
(8,833)

-
84,052

(84,052)

34,198
105,551
(71,352)

(34,198)
(27,499)

(6,699)

BUDGET ACTUAL VARIANCE

735,955
57,656

678,300

642,131
54,046

588,085

93,824
3,610

90,214

       

Build consumer trust 
through public education

Undertake appropriate professional 
development to enhance director 

e�ectiveness and ensure continued 
appropriate board composition

Identify and implement 
opportunities to increase 

involvement of growers in the 
industry

Funding/Operations

BCCMB Operating Revenue
Rental Income
BCCMB Grant Poultry in Motion Program
BCBHEPA Poultry in Motion Cost share
Grant Income
Chicken Golf Tournament
Miscellaneous Income

BCCMB OPERATING SURPLUS

EXPENSES:

TOTAL REVENUE
TOTAL EXPENSE
NET

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

14,972
3,000
3,500

-
2,330

-
-
-

15,000
-

1,500
350

-
-
-
-
-
-

2,200
3,250

-

13,292
-

3,408
-

1,153
-
-
-

13,315
-

511
347

-
-
-
-
-
-

2,194
3,049

-

1,680
3,000

92
-

1,177
-
-
-

1,685
-

990
3
-
-
-
-
-
-
6

201
-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-
-

34,198
-

-

-
-
-
-
-

34,198
-

-

14,972
6,000

14,000
-

1,165
-

300
-

25,000
-

300
3,150

-
290

-
1,100

375
-

4,400
13,000

-

13,292
-

13,633
-

577
-

144
-

22,191
34,198

102
3,126

-
233

-
1,058

413
-

4,389
12,196

-

1,680
-

367
-

588
-

156
-

2,809
34,198

198
24

-
57

-
42
38

-
11

804
-

       

675,955
60,000

-
-
-
-
-

-

675,955
60,000

-
-
-
-
-

93,824

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

93,824

4,991
-

21,000
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

2,700
1,885
8,500
1,650

225
10,205

-
6,500

-

4,431
-

20,449
-
-

1,583
-
-
-
-
-
-

684
1,516
7,246
1,586

248
10,205

-
6,098

-

560
-

551
-
-

1,583
-
-
-
-
-
-

2,016
369

1,254
64
23

-
-

402
-

-
-
-

13,000
-
-
-

-

-
-

73,604
27,178
14,776

-
-

-

-
-

73,604
14,178
14,776

-
-

-

16,635
3,000

10,500
72,900

1,165
-

600
-

10,000
-
-
-

1,800
290

-
-

150
-

4,400
-

500

14,769
-

10,224
90,880

577
14,244

288
91,005

8,876
-
-
-

456
233

-
-

165
-

4,389
395

-

1,866
3,000

276
17,980

588
14,244

312
91,005

1,124
-
-
-

1,344
57

-
-

15
-

11
-

105

REVENUES:

Directors Per Diem
Association Manager Honorarium
Administrators’ Honorariums
Poultry in Motion Coordinators/ Per Diems
Audit/ Legal/ Consulting
Amortization
Advertising & Promotions
PiM Operating Expenses
BC Poultry Conference/ Dinners/ Picnic
Chicken Golf Tournament
Conferences & Seminars
Memberships, Dues & Subscriptions
Insurance
O�ice/ Bank Expenses
Property Taxes
Meetings/ Refreshments
Telecommunications
Strata Fees
BC Poultry Association
Travel & Meals
Donations

       

Nurture 
existing 

relationships 
and develop 

new 
relationships 

with key 
industry 

stakeholders

ALLOCATE 
PERCENTAGES 
FOR ACTIVITIES

Undertake 
appropriate 
professional 

development to 
enhance director 

eectiveness 
and ensure 
continued 

appropriate 
board 

composition

Identify and 
implement 

opportunitie
s to increase 
involvement 
of growers in 
the industry

Funding/
Operations

BCCMB Operating Revenue
Rental Income
BCCMB Grant Poultry in Motion Program
BCBHEPA Poultry in Motion Cost share
Grant Income
Chicken Golf Tournament
Miscellaneous Income

BCCMB OPERATING SURPLUS

EXPENSES:

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-

100%
100%
100%

-
-

-

8%
10%

5%
-
-
-

10%
-

10%
-

10%
-
-
-
-

5%
5%

-
20%
10%

-

15%
10%

5%
-

3%
-
-
-
-
-

5%
-
-
-
-

5%
5%

-
10%
10%

-

10%
5%

15%
90%

1%
90%
40%

100%
10%

-
-
-

40%
10%

-
-

10%
-

10%
-

10%

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-
-

40%
-

-

100%
100%

-
-
-
-

100%

100%

9%
5%
5%

-
2%

-
-
-

15%
-

50%
10%

-
-
-
-
-
-

5%
5%

-

9%
10%
20%

-
1%

-
20%

-
25%
40%
10%
90%

-
10%

-
20%
25%

-
10%
20%

-

3%
15%
30%

-
-

10%
-
-
-
-
-
-

60%
65%

100%
30%
15%

100%
-

10%
-

       

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

100%

100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%
100%

-
-
-
-
-

60%
-

-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

-
-
-
-
-
-
-

-

11%
15%

5%
5%
3%

-
10%

-
20%
60%
15%

-
-

10%
-

20%
15%

-
25%
15%
10%

10%
10%

5%
5%
2%

-
10%

-
10%

-
5%

-
-
-
-

5%
5%

-
10%
10%
80%

25%
20%
10%

-
88%

-
10%

-
10%

-
5%

-
-

5%
-

15%
20%

-
10%
20%

-

REVENUES:

Build 
consumer trust 
through public 

education

Educate 
Government on 

the chicken 
industry

Collaborate 
with 

appropriate 
industry 

stakeholders to 
develop tools 

needed by 
producers to 

address 
variability in 
production 

levels

Producers 
receive prices 
that provide a 
stable income 
which enables 
them to cover 

production 
costs and form 
a sustainable, 
subsidy free 

industry

Participate 
with industry 

stakeholders in 
developing 

disease 
strategies
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BUDGET VS ACTUAL

50 M A R K E T I N G  B O A R D

Source Sans Pro

2019 ANNUAL REPORT

BCCGA FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



BCCGA BUDGET ANALYSIS FOR ANNUAL BUDGET 2020

Directors Per Diem
General Manager
Administrators’ Honorariums
Poultry in Motion Coordinators/ Per Diems
Audit/ Legal/ Consulting
Advertising & promotions
PiM Operating Expenses
Poultry Conference/ dinners/ picnic
Conferences & Seminars
Dues & Subscriptions
Insurance
O�ice/ Bank expenses
Property Taxes
Meetings/ Refreshments
Telecommunication
Strata Fees/ Repairs & Maintenance
BC Poultry Association
Travel & Meals
Donations

37,813

REVENUES:
BCCMB Operating Revenue
Rental Income
BCBHEPA Poultry in Motion Cost share

REVENUE TOTAL

EXPENSES:

EXPENSE TOTAL

Total Budget

706,000
35,000
13,000

-
-
-

-

-
-
-

-

-
-
-

-

-
-
-

-

156,100
84,000
45,000
84,500

122,500
1,000

-
95,000

2,000
3,500
1,300
2,900
8,500
5,500
3,000

22,200
44,000
68,000

5,000

23,415
16,800
2,250
4,225
6,125
100

28,500
300

290

1,100
450

11,000
10,200

500

15,610
6,720
2,250
4,225

12,250
100

9,500
100

275
150

4,400
6,800
4,000

34,342
22,680
4,500

67,325
100

9,500
100

145

825
600

4,400
13,600

Nurture existing 
relationships and develop 

new relationships with 
key industry stakeholders

Educate 
Government on 

the chicken 
industry

Producers receive prices that 
provide a stable income which 

enables them to cover production 
costs and form a sustainable, 

subsidy free industry

105,255 66,380 158,167

-

-
-
-
-

-

-

-
-

-

-

-

-

-
-

-

-

-

Participate with industry 
stakeholders in 

developing disease 
strategies

12,488
4,200
2,250

-
-

100
-

4,750
200

-
-
-
-

275
150

-
6,600
6,800

-

Directors Per Diem
General Manager (incl. benefits and search)
Administrators’ Honorariums
Poultry in Motion Coordinators/ Per Diems
Audit/ Legal/ Consulting
Advertising & promotions
PiM Operating Expenses
Poultry Conference/ dinners/ picnic
Conferences & Seminars
Dues & Subscriptions
Insurance
O�ice/ Bank expenses
Property Taxes
Meetings/ Refreshments
Telecommunication
Strata Fees/ Repairs & Maintenance
BC Poultry Association
Travel & Meals
Donations

-
-
-

-

-
-

13,000

13,000

23,415
12,600
2,250

-
12,250

-
-
-

100
-
-
-
-

275
150

-
8,800
6,800

-

10,927
4,200
6,750

76,050
6,125
400

-
9,500

-
-
-

145
-
-

300
-

2,200
-

500

Collaborate with 
appropriate industry 

stakeholders to develop 
tools needed by producers 

to address variability in 
production levels

Build consumer 
trust through 

public education

66,640 117,097 754,000

REVENUES:
BCCMB Operating Revenue
Rental Income
BCBHEPA Poultry in Motion Cost share

REVENUE TOTAL

EXPENSES:

EXPENSE TOTAL

Total Budget

706,000
35,000
13,000

754,000

-
-
-

-

-
-
-

-

706,000
35,000

-

741,000

15,610
4,200
2,250

-
12,250

-
-

9,500
1,000
350

-
-
-
-
-
-

2,200
3,400

-

15,610
8,400
4,500

-
6,125
200

-
23,750

200
3,150

-
290

-
1,100
750

-
4,400

13,600
-

4,683
4,200

18,000
-
-
-
-
-
-
-

1,300
2,030
8,500
1,650
450

22,200
-

6,800
-

Undertake appropriate 
professional development 

to enhance director 
eectiveness and ensure 

continued appropriate 
board composition

Identify and 
implement 

opportunities to 
increase involvement 

of growers in the 
industry

Funding/Operations

50,760 82,075 69,813

156,100
84,000
45,000
84,500

122,500
1,000

-
95,000

2,000
3,500
1,300
2,900
8,500
5,500
3,000

22,200
44,000
68,000

5,000
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POULTRY IN MOTION 
EDUCATIONAL MINI-
BARN PROGRAM 2019  
REPORT
The BC Chicken Growers’ Association and the BC Broiler 
Hatching Egg Producers’ Association developed the 
Poultry in Motion Educational Mini Barn Program in an 
effort to educate consumers and increase awareness 
about chicken farming in BC. The fully equipped mini 
barns are featured at fairs, schools and agriculture 
events around the province.  

The Poultry in Motion program concluded its season 
at the end of October. We now have Poultry in Motion 
mini barn trailers in all three regions! - Lower Mainland, 
Interior and this year the new trailer on Vancouver Island.  

The Lower Mainland and Vancouver Island trailers, 
operated by the BC Chicken Growers’ Association and 
the BC Broiler Hatching Egg Producers Association, 
consist of three sections. each showing a different stage 
of development: the parent stock – the broiler breeders 
– who produce the fertilized eggs, day-old chicks and 
market ready chickens. Each section is set up as a 
small-scale poultry barn, showing the technology and 
responsible animal husbandry that is practiced on BC 
chicken farms. The Interior trailer, that is operated by 
the BC Chicken Growers’ Association, consists of two 
sections: day-old chicks and market ready chickens.

The coordinators in each region reported on a very 
successful year.

Fraser Valley/Lower Mainland

This has been a full year and the Schools and Fairs/Events 
were very thankful to have the Poultry in Motion attend.
 
Dave and I have learned a lot this year with helping at 
several Fairs and finishing off the scheduled bookings 
for the Fall after our presenter Kalie moved out of 
the region. The fair attendees were thankful for the 
handouts and great information, especially the new 
Buy BC Chicken recipe book. The fair/event attendees 
are concerned about the food they buy for their families 

and appreciate talking to farmers. They want to know 
that they can trust how local BC chicken is raised and 
cared by the farmer. 

This Fall, Dave and I realized how huge of job it is to do 
a presentation with the Poultry in Motion Trailer. This 
included cleaning of the trailer, maintaining the trailer, 
sourcing birds, ensuring you have packed enough 
supplies for the schools, early mornings driving in traffic 
and being patient, communication with the contact 
teacher, adjusting the presentation for all school aged 
students from Kindergarten to grade 12, and preparing 
for the weather. We appreciated all the work that Kalie 
did with presenting this year! We look forward to having 
a new presenter this coming year! 

I have at least 10 schools tentatively booked for the 
spring 2020 already! 

The Schools we visited were friendly, inviting and it was 
a delight to present, educate and answer questions 
from the students and staff.

Schools visited:
52 elementary and secondary schools attended from 
Hope to Vancouver with over 16,970 students and staff 
attending presentations. 

Poultry in Motion was also featured at 16 fairs/events: 
Cloverdale Rodeo and Exhibition, Yarrow Days, The 
Farm Store 5-year Anniversary Event, Agriculture 
Bus Tour, Abbotsford Berry Fest, Agriculture in the 
Classroom Summer Institute, Aldergrove Fair, Maple 
Ridge-Pitt Meadows Country Fest, Abbotsford AgriFair, 
Chilliwack Fair, PNE Vancouver, Delta Farmland & 
Wildlife Trust, Agassiz Fall Fair and Corn Festival, Olde 
Harvest Fair Surrey, Girl Guide Event Chilliwack, 2019 
THESA Conference (Teachers of Home Economics 
Specialist Association), “Farm to Table” event. 

Submitted by Sheryl Martens, Poultry in Motion Coordinator, Fraser Valley and 
Lower Mainland

Vancouver Island

Schools visited:
36 elementary and secondary schools with a total 
student audience of 9,715.
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Fairs and Ag events attended: Island Agriculture Show, 
Coombs Fair, Comox Valley Fair, Saanich Fair and 
Cowichan Exhibition.

How exciting it was for Vancouver Island to receive 
their very own Poultry in Motion Educational Mini 
Barn on April 6th. The Mini Barn was enthusiastically 
welcomed by students, staff and the many fair goers.    
The immediate responses were an abundance of 
compliments about the educational content of the 
presentation; attractiveness of the birds and exhibit, as 
well as an expression of appreciation for the Mini Barn 
and displayed information about a food production 
group in BC and Canada.  

The Island Ag Show was held at the Saanich fair 
grounds this year. School attendance was keen and 
busy. At the request of teachers, I gave presentations to 
classes as they visited the Mini Barn. This also attracted 
participation by the adult visitors.   

Schools continue to value the Poultry in Motion 
presentation delivering accurate and up-to-date 
information about ‘where one of our foods comes from 
which includes showing a caring and respectful attitude 
towards chickens. People are surprised to learn about 
the technology in the industry as well as the in-depth 
regulations of our Canadian industry. 
  
Question time is always stimulating and fun... even the 
kindergarten students formulate very appropriate and 
well-thought out questions... thank you teachers for 

your prep work! Many teachers commented that they 
were incubating eggs in their classroom this year and 
that the Poultry in Motion was a perfect connection for 
the learning outcome.    

I cannot pass up mentioning the ‘keeners’ both teachers  
and students for extending the topic into the classroom 
covering everything from healthy eating to creative 
writing from the perspective of their classroom mascot, 
a squishy Buy BC chicken. A number of motivated 
students attended at the trailer during recess, lunch 
and their time slot with pencil and notebook in hand 
busily copying down the facts displayed on the trailer 
and bits of information from the presentation as well as 
answers to their questions. Good for them!!

While attending at the Saanich Fair we were placed 
with the Buy Local / Buy BC exhibit which brought 
about a steady stream of curious visitors and so many 
stimulating conversations about our industry. Our 
Minister of Agriculture, Lana Popham, was one of our 
visitors. She graciously accepted our Buy BC handouts.   

In closing, I must add that the Vancouver Island region of 
the BC Chicken Growers’ Association expresses sincere 
appreciation and thanks to those who were part of 
having our wish for a Poultry in Motion Educational Mini 
Barn dedicated to Vancouver Island come to fruition.     
We are also very grateful to Island Farmhouse Poultry, 
Rossdown Farms and Reliable Poultry Services for their 
continued support. 

Submitted by Bev Whitta, Poultry in Motion Coordinator, Vancouver Island
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Interior

Coordinator: Makayla Costa
Presenters: Amanda Renner, and Shaili Renner

This year felt very successful for the Interior Poultry in 
Motion team. We visited 27 school, and saw over 4,000 
students. The presenters had great feedback from 
schools. We also visited a seniors’ Manor, which isn’t 
something that has been requested in the past, but was 
asked for this year by Pleasant Valley Manor.

Other fairs and agriculture events that Poultry in Motion 
attended: Breakfast on the Farm Armstrong, Canada 
Day event Vernon, Fresh from the Farm Penticton, Oliver 
Roots & Fruits, Interior Provincial Exhibition Armstrong, 
Grand Forks Fall Fair, Rock Creek Fall Fair, Pass Creek Fall 
Fair Castlegar and BC Agriculture Expo in Barriere. 

I have already had schools approaching me for the 
2020 booking season, which is amazing! They are new 
schools and have heard about us through the grapevine.
Another success we had this year was in Kamloops; 
they had so many classes interested that we made their 
school visit a 2-day event!

All in all it was a great year, and we are looking forward 
to next year!

Submitted by Makayla Costa, Poultry in Motion Coordinator, Interior

Amanda and I thoroughly enjoyed our first season 
presenting for the Poultry in Motion Interior Trailer.  
As third-generation chicken farmers, we are very 
passionate about properly educating the public with 
regards to the poultry industry.  Children and adults 
alike seemed very receptive to our personal perspective 
and experience as broiler farmers. We felt that having a 
duo of presenters also worked very well.  It gave us the 
ability to teach two classes at the same time when the 
inevitable overlap happens, with one class being late 
and the next early.  We never had classes waiting for 
us to finish up or had to cut a lesson short because we 
were running late.  Every class got the full experience.  

We would be very happy to continue as ambassadors 
for the industry in the years to come!

Submitted by Shaili and Amanda Renner

Both the BC Chicken Growers’ Association and the BC 
Broiler Hatching Egg Producers Association would like 
to extend a HUGE thank you to our coordinators and 
presenters for doing a great job!  Without them, our 
Poultry in Motion program would not be possible.

A special thank you to our Poultry in Motion funding 
partners:

	z The BC Sustainable Poultry Farming Group 
awarded a $20,000 grant towards the construction 
costs of the new Poultry in Motion trailer!

	z Investment Agriculture of BC/Province of BC/
Government of Canada approved our funding 
application for $27,500 in Poultry in Motion 
Educational Mini-Barn program operational costs 
related to ‘new and expanding’ areas on Vancouver 
Island.

	z Metro Vancouver approved our annual funding 
application and donated $4,000 to the Lower 
Mainland Poultry in Motion program. 
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MP Forcier and Company, CPA Inc.
CHARTERED PROFESSIONAL ACCOUNTANT

107 - 2790 Gladwin Road Telephone: (604) 853-5705
Abbotsford, BC V2T 4S7 Fax: (604) 853-5736

Email: trevorholmgren.cpa@gmail.com

Auditor's Report

To the Board of Directors
BC Chicken Growers' Association

Opinion

I have audited the financial statements of BC Chicken Growers' Association, which comprise the statement of financial position as at
December 31, 2019, and the statements of operations, net assets and cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In my opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of BC Chicken Growers'
Association as at December 31, 2019, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the
applicable financial reporting framework.

Basis for Opinion

I conducted my audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards. My responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of my report. I am independent of the
association in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to my audit of the financial statements in Canada, and I have
fulfilled my other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for my opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the  Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance with the applicable financial
reporting framework, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing these financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the association’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to a going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the association or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the association’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

My objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes my opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the
aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards, I exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. I also:

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the association’s internal control.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by management.

 Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the association’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If I conclude that a material uncertainty exists, I am required to draw attention in my
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify my opinion.
My conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the association to cease to continue as a going concern.

 Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

I communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that I identify during my audit.

MP Forcier and Company, CPA, Inc.
Chartered Professional Accountant

Abbotsford
February 12, 2020
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BC CHICKEN GROWERS' ASSOCIATION
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

DECEMBER 31, 2019

2019 2018
ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS
Cash $ 217,553 $ 110,062
Accounts receivable (Note 5) 15,522 28,364
Inventory (Note 3) 14,922 19,699
Prepaid expenses 53,084 65,933

301,081 224,058
LONG TERM ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment, net of accumulated amortization (Note 4) 282,008 253,517

$ 583,089 $ 477,575

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
CURRENT LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (Note 6) $ 124,501 $ 85,644
Due to government agencies 6,061 9,995
Deferred contributions (Note 7) 24,871 -

155,433 95,639

FUND BALANCES
Net assets - ending 427,656 381,936

$ 583,089 $ 477,575

Approved on Behalf of the Directors:

_____________________________, 

_____________________________, 

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
MP Forcier and Company, CPA, Inc.

3
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BC CHICKEN GROWERS' ASSOCIATION
STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS AND NET ASSETS

YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2019

2019 2018

REVENUE
British Columbia Chicken Marketing Board  (Note 8) $ 675,955 $ 746,130

Rental income 60,000 60,000

Poultry in Motion Educational Mini Barn Program (Note 8) 73,604 -

Grant revenue (Note 13) 14,776 4,000

Golf tournament 85,496 -

909,831 810,130

EXPENSES
Golf tournament (Note 11) 85,496 -

Accounting and legal 23,978 131,774

Administrators' honorariums 68,163 69,162

Advertising 721 609

Amortization 15,827 8,865

Annual picnic and dinners 13,600 15,533

BC Poultry Association 43,886 72,123

BC Poultry Conference 75,164 81,047

Conferences and seminars 1,021 1,008

Consulting fees 33,675 57,844

Directors remuneration (Note 8) 147,688 170,783

Donations 3,947 3,494

Insurance 1,140 1,139

Interest and bank charges 112 109

Memberships, dues and subscriptions  3,473 3,324

Office expenses 7,509 7,907

Poultry in Motion Educational Mini Barn Program (Note 10) and (Note 8) 164,805 119,138

Property taxes 7,246 7,266

Strata fees 10,205 10,205

Travel, meals and entertainment 60,978 82,525

Telecommunications 1,653 2,033

770,287 845,888

EXCESS OF REVENUES OVER EXPENSES 139,544 (35,758)

NET ASSETS, beginning of year 381,936 417,694

Return of surplus to BC Chicken Marketing Board  (Note 12) (93,824) -

NET ASSETS, end of year $ 427,656 $ 381,936

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
MP Forcier and Company, CPA, Inc.
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BC CHICKEN GROWERS' ASSOCIATION
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2019

2019 2018

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Excess of revenues over expenses $ 139,543 $ (35,758)
Amortization 15,827 8,865

155,370 (26,893)

CHANGES IN NON-CASH WORKING CAPITAL

- accounts receivable 12,843 (463)
- inventory 4,777 (2,739)
- prepaid expenses 12,849 (31,219)
- accounts payable 38,857 (2,515)
- due to government agencies (3,934) 2,466
- deferred contributions 24,871 -

245,633 (61,363)

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of capital assets (44,318) -
Distribution of surplus to B.C Chicken Marketing Board (93,824) -

NET CASH INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 107,491 (61,363)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 110,062 171,425

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF PERIOD $ 217,553 $ 110,062

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these financial statements.
MP Forcier and Company, CPA, Inc.
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BC CHICKEN GROWERS' ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2019

BC Chicken Growers' Association was incorporated under the Societies Act of British Columbia. It is a not-for-profit organzation which
commenced operations in 1957 to unite the commercial chicken growers in working for the betterment of the chicken industry and to act as a
liaison between chicken growers, marketing boards, industry and government.  Th association is exempt from tax under the Income Tax Act.

NOTE 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Canadian Accounting Standards for not-for-profit entities (ASNFPO) and
reflect the following policies:

A. REVENUE RECOGNITION 

The association follows the deferral method of accounting for contributions.  Restricted contributions are recognized as revenue in the
year in which the related expenses are incurred.  Unrestricted contributions are recognized as revenue when they are received or
receivable if the amount to be received can be reasonably estimated and collection is reasonably assured.

BC Chicken Marketing Board contributions are recognized when allocations are approved and collection is reasonably assured.

Rental income is recognized as revenue on the 1st day of the month rent is charged and when collection is reasonably assured.

Grant income is received from several sources and are restricted contributions.  Grant income is recognized as revenue in the year in
which related expenses are incurred..

B. INVENTORIES 

Inventory includes various brochures, books, DVD's, and gifts to be distributed to the public at no charge.  Inventory is measured at the
lower of cost and replacement value.  Cost is determined using first in first out method.

C. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost.  Depreciation is calculated using the declining balance method over estimated useful
lives.  When a tangible capital asset no longer has any long-term service potential for the organization, the excess of its net carrying
amount over any residual value is recognized as an expense in the statement of operations.  Depreciation rates used for identified
classes of assets are as follows:

-Buildings: 4%
-Poultry in Motion Educational Mini Barns: 20%
-Office furniture: 20%
-Educational video: 10%
-Computer equipment 10%

Land and building title are held in 584688 BC Ltd, a bare trustee corporation.  Effective fiscal 2019, the organization changed its
amortization policy of Poultry in Motion Educational Mini Barns from 10% per annum to 20% per annum.

6
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BC CHICKEN GROWERS' ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2019

NOTE 1. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 

D. USE OF ESTIMATES 

When preparing financial statements according to ASNFPO, the association makes estimates and assumptions relating to:

- Reported amounts of revenue and expenses;
- Reported amounts of assets and liabilities; and
- Disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities.

Management's assumptions are based on a number of factors, including historical experience, current events and actions that the
organization may undertake in the future, and other experience that are reasonable under the circumstances.  Actual results could differ
from those estimates under different conditions and assumptions.  Estimates were used when accounting for certain items, such as
accounts payable.

E. ALLOCATION OF EXPENSES 

The association engages in Poultry in Motion public awareness program and representation of BC chicken growers.  The association
specifically identifies expenses allocated to each program.  Directors remuneration are allocated between the programs by specific
identification based on per diem payments.  Directors remuneration for general operations are shown in the statement of operations,
remuneration for Poultry in Motion are disclosed in the schedule of costs.

NOTE 2. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 

Financial instruments are recorded at fair value when acquired or issued.  In subsequent periods, financial assets with actively traded markets
are reported at fair value, with any unrealised gains and losses reported in income.  All other financial instruments are reported at amortized
cost, and tested for impairment at each reporting date.  Transaction costs on the acquisition, sale, or issue of financial instruments are
expensed when incurred.

The association uses risk management to monitor and manage its risk arising from financial instruments.  These risks include credit risk,
interest rate risk, liquidity risk and market risk.

The association does not use any derivative financial instruments to mitigate these risks.

Credit Risk
Credit risks arise from two sources: cash and cash equivalents and amounts due from related parties.  Cash and cash equivalents are
deposited with reputable, major financial institutions to limit the credit risk exposure.  The credit risk from counter parties not paying
amounts due is not considered to be significant.

Interest rate risk
The association is exposed to interest rate risk with respect to its cash and cash equivalents.  Changes in interest rates can affect the cash
flows related to interest income and expense.

Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk exposure is dependent on the receipt of funds from BC Chicken Marketing Board, municipal  government grants and other
source to enable the association to pay its liabilities as they become due.

Market risk
As the association does not invest in publicly traded securities it is not exposed to fluctuations in the market and as such is not exposed to
any market risk at this time.

7
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BC CHICKEN GROWERS' ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2019

NOTE 3. INVENTORY 

Inventory amounts recognized as an expense are included in Poultry in Motion operating costs.

2019 2018

Inventory opening $ 19,699 $ 16,960
Additions 9,935 9,935
Amounts expensed (14,712) (7,196)

Total $ 14,922 $ 19,699

NOTE 4. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 

Property, plant and equipment consist of the following:

Cost
Accumulated
Depreciation

2019

Net Book Value

2018

Net Book Value

Land $ 100,277 $ - $ 100,277 $ 100,277
Buildings 243,417 (130,252) 113,165 117,879
Poultry in Motion Educational Mini Barns 104,375 (40,972) 63,403 31,262
Office furniture and equipment 8,044 (6,411) 1,633 176
Educational videos 4,848 (2,272) 2,576 2,863
Computer equipment 5,426 (4,472) 954 1,060

Total $ 466,387 $ (184,379) $ 282,008 $ 253,517

NOTE 5. POULTRY IN MOTION EDUCATIONAL MINI BARNS COST SHARING 

Accounts receivable arise from a cost sharing arrangement for the operation of the "Poultry in Motion" mini barn.  The British Columbia
Broiler Hatching Egg Producers' Association (BCBHEPA) has a 20% interest in the Lower Mainland and Vancouver Island Poultry in
Motion mini barns.  Costs for Lower mainland and Vancouver Island Poultry in Motion mini barns are totaled each fiscal year, 20% of the
costs are allocated to the BCBHEPA.  The $15,522 accounts receivable is comprised entirely of fiscal 2019 cost sharing receivable for the
"Poultry in Motion" mini barns.

NOTE 6. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 

2019 2018

Trade payables and accrued liabilities $ 19,377 $ 46,475
Due to directors 6,609 39,169
Due to BC Chicken Marketing Board 98,515 -

Total $ 124,501 $ 85,644

Amounts due to directors include per diems payable and reimbursements payable for general operating expenses.  Amounts due to the BC
Chicken Marketing Board relate to the return of Surplus plus GST.

8
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BC CHICKEN GROWERS' ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2019

NOTE 7. DEFERRED CONTRIBUTIONS 

2019

BC Sustainable Poultry Farming Group grant restricted for the purchase of Vancouver Island Poultry in Motion trailer $ 14,400
BC Chicken Marketing Board contributions restricted for the purchase of Poultry in Motion assets 9,648
BC Investment Agricultural Foundation unused grant restricted for future period use, the grant is restricted for the

Vancouver Island Poultry in Motion operating costs in order to support new and expanding markets. 823

Total $ 24,871

NOTE 8. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 

Related party transactions consist of the following:

Rent amounts were paid to three directors of the association for the storage of the three Poultry in Motion mini barn trailers and supplies on
personal property.  The total amount of rent paid for the year was $29,050 (2018 - $16,800) and is included in the Poultry in Motion
operating expenses.

Per diem amounts were paid to the directors of the association in the amount of $157,400 (2018 - $177,106).  These per diem amounts were
compensation for the preparation for and attendance of director meetings, advocacy meetings, and Poultry in Motion operations.  These
amounts are included in directors remuneration and Poultry in Motion expenses.

Operating revenue and rental revenue was received from the BC Chicken Marketing Board, an entity related by having significant influence
over the association.  Operating and Poultry in Motion Educational Mini Barn revenue totaled $749,559 (2018 - $746,130), rental revenue
totaled $60,000 (2018 - $60,000).

These transactions are in the normal course of operations and are measured at the exchange amount, which is the amount of consideration
established and agreed to by the related parties, and which in management's opinion is comparable to amounts that would have been paid to
non-related parties.

NOTE 9. ECONOMIC DEPENDENCE 

The association receives substantially all of its funding from the British Columbia Chicken Marketing Board.

NOTE 10. POULTRY IN MOTION SCHEDULE OF COSTS 

2019 2018

Attendants' remuneration - directors $ 19,359 $ 13,075

Attendants' remuneration - non directors 3,450 8,700

Coordinators' and presenters' honorariums 78,169 54,038

Operating costs 60,952 48,583

Poultry in Motion trailer storage 29,050 16,800

Insurance 1,003 1,786

191,983 142,982
Poultry in Motion cost sharing with BCBHEPA (27,178) (23,844)

Total $ 164,805 $ 119,138
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BC CHICKEN GROWERS' ASSOCIATION
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2019

NOTE 11. GOLF TOURNAMENT SCHEDULE OF COSTS 

The association, together with the BCBHEPA, organized the fourth annual golf tournament during the fiscal year.  The association hired a
third party to manage the tournament.  The net proceeds of the tournament are donated to local charities approved by the board.  In 2019, the
association took over accounting of the golf tournament from the BC Broiler Hatching Egg Commission.  Net proceeds were donated to the
Cyrus Centre and Archway Community Services (Food Bank).

2019

Tournament Revenue
Golf fees collected $ 85,495

Tournament expenses
Course fees 22,577
Credit card charges 1,889
Tournament coordinator 8,000
Meals 1,695
Donations 51,334

Total expenses $ 85,495

NOTE 12. RETURN OF SURPLUS 

The association has an agreement with the BC Chicken Marketing Board to return a portion of the annual surplus.  For fiscal 2019 the
association has a surplus, the board has approved the return of $93,824 of fiscal 2019 surplus to the BC Chicken Marketing Board.

NOTE 13. GRANT REVENUE 

Grant revenue recognized during the year consists of:

2019 2018

BC Sustainable Poultry Farming Group grant restricted for the purchase of Vancouver Island Poultry in
Motion trailer. $ 1,600 $ -

BC Investment Agricultural Foundation grant restricted for Vancouver Island Poultry in Motion
operating costs in order to support new and expanding markets. 9,176 -

Metro Vancouver Agricultural Awareness grant for Poultry in Motion Educational Mini Barns. 4,000 4,000

Total $ 14,776 $ 4,000
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FILING A 

REGULATED 
MARKETING 
APPEAL  
WITH THE B.C. FARM INDUSTRY 
REVIEW BOARD
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A person aggrieved or dissatisfied with an order, decision 
or determination of the following commodity marketing 
boards and commissions may file an appeal to the 
British Columbia Farm Industry Review Board (BCFIRB):

	z British Columbia Broiler Hatching Egg Commission 

	z British Columbia Chicken Marketing Board

	z British Columbia Cranberry Marketing Commission 

	z British Columbia Egg Marketing Board

	z British Columbia Hog Marketing Commission 

	z British Columbia Milk Marketing Board 

	z British Columbia Turkey Marketing Board

	z British Columbia Vegetable Marketing Commission

WHAT IS THE BRITISH 
COLUMBIA FARM 
INDUSTRY REVIEW 
BOARD?
The British Columbia Farm Industry Review Board 
(BCFIRB) is an administrative tribunal that has statutory 
responsibility for exercising regulatory and adjudicative 
functions independent of government in its general 
supervision of BC regulated marketing boards and 
commissions and in hearing regulated marketing appeals; 
farm practices complaints, and animal seizure appeals.

Originally known as the British Columbia Marketing Board 
(“BCMB”), BCFIRB was created in 1934 under the NPMA 
to supervise the commodity boards. Over the years, the 
role has been expanded and its authority redefined to 
address changes in the regulated marketing sector.

BCFIRB is composed of up to ten members appointed by 
Lieutenant Governor-in-Council (LGIC). Board members 
backgrounds vary, with experience in production, marketing, 
law and education related to agricultural issues.

HOW LONG DO I HAVE 
TO APPEAL?
BCFIRB must receive your written notice of appeal not 
more than thirty (30) days after the order, decision or 
determination of the commodity board or commission 
is made.

If an appeal is filed more than 30 days after the marketing 
board’s decision, the person filing the notice of appeal 
must explain what special circumstances exist that 
warrant BCFIRB accepting a late appeal (See ATA s.24: 
http://www.bclaws.ca/EPLibraries/bclaws_new/
document/ID/freeside/00_04045_01).
 

DO I NEED LEGAL 
COUNSEL?
Only if you want or think you need it. It is your decision 
to make, and you will be responsible for paying your 
own lawyer.

WHERE DO I SEND THE 
APPEAL?
Either by mail, courier, fax or email as follows:

Mail:
Attention: Executive Director
British Columbia Farm Industry Review Board 
PO Box 9129 Stn Prov Govt
Victoria BC V8W 9B5

Courier:
Attention: Executive Director
British Columbia Farm Industry Review Board 
780 Blanshard Street
Victoria BC V8W 2H1

Email: firb@gov.bc.ca 
Fax: 250-356-5131
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WHAT SHOULD BE 
INCLUDED IN THE 
NOTICE OF APPEAL?
The notice of appeal must be accompanied by a non-
refundable $100.00 filing fee. Cheque or money order 
should be made out to the “Minister of Finance”.

The notice of appeal must include the following:

	z be in writing and signed

	z identify the decision being appealed

	z state why the decision should be changed

	z state the outcome requested from BCFIRB

	z include your name, address, telephone number, 
email (or the contact information of the person 
handling the appeal for you)

	z  include an address for delivery of any notices 
related to the appeal BCCMB’s notice of appeal 
form  can be used to file an appeal.  

WHAT HAPPENS WHEN 
THE BRITISH COLUMBIA 
FARM INDUSTRY REVIEW 
BOARD RECEIVES THE 
APPEAL?
BCFIRB will send you a letter acknowledging the receipt 
of your appeal. This letter will also contain information 
which explains the appeal process in greater detail. At 
the same time, BCFIRB will notify the commodity board 
or commission concerned that an appeal has been filed 
and instruct them of their responsibilities as outlined in 
the Rules of Practice and Procedures.
 
BCFIRB will also ensure that the commodity board or 
commission has received a copy of your notice of appeal.

BCFIRB will issue notice to the parties requiring them 
to attend a pre-hearing conference call. The purpose of 
the pre-hearing conference will be to clarify the issue 

on appeal and determine the position of each party 
as well as the remedies sought by the appellant. The 
pre-hearing conference call will also be used to confirm 
hearing dates and directions for the appeal hearing.

BCFIRB encourages parties to consider Alternative 
Dispute Resolution (ADR) to facilitate settlements of 
the matter under appeal and will assist the parties 
in establishing an ADR process. Parties can apply to 
BCFIRB requesting ADR. Discussions about possible 
ADR alternatives will also be an agenda item for the pre-
hearing conference.

The hearing of your appeal will normally be held not 
more than 60 days after BCFIRB first receives your notice 
of appeal; however, these timelines will be dependent 
upon the circumstances of all the parties to the appeal.

What is the most important thing for me to remember?

BCFIRB must receive your written notice of appeal within 
30 days of an order, decision or determination of the 
commodity board or commission. Failure to meet this 
deadline may result in BCFIRB not hearing your appeal.

HOW CAN I GET MORE 
INFORMATION?
For further information please refer to the Rules of 
Practice and Procedures for Appeals. Section 8 of 
the Natural Products Marketing (BC) Act (NPMA), 
and the Administrative Tribunals Act (ATA).

More information on the appeal process is 
available on BCFIRB’s website at: www.gov.bc.ca/
BCFarmIndustryReviewBoard.

The standing orders of the commodity board or 
commission involved may also contain information.

Should you have any further questions please feel free 
to contact BCFIRB directly at: 

Phone: 250 356-8945
Fax: 250 356-5131
Email: firb@gov.bc.ca
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VISION
Leading a healthy, growing and 
profitable BC chicken industry.

PURPOSE
To regulate the pricing and production of BC chicken while 

meeting consumer expectations including animal care and on 
farm food safety; and working with industry partners to maintain 

sustainability as we grow the market.  

Goals

Fair 
we take a balanced 
approach in executing 
our responsibilities 

Implement 
programs that provide 

the opportunity for a fair 
return to the producers, and 

allow processors to be 
competitive in the 
domestic market

Implement 
programs to promote 
increased production 
and consumption of 

chicken in BC.

Implement 
programs that result 

in industry sustainability 
and diversity.

Achieve “Best in 
Class” Board 

governance and 
business operations.

Working within 
the Federal Provincial 

Agreement for chicken to 
optimize growth 

opportunities for the BC 
chicken industry.

With our industry partners, sta� and the public in mind, we are:

Dependable
we can be counted on 
to do what we say we 
will do

Accountable
we hold ourselves 
responsible for our 
decisions and actions 

Values
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